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PRESS:

22
23

CHAIR TAVARES:

Will the Planning Committee please come to

24

order.

We have with us Danny Mateo, Vice-Chair,

25

Committee Members Robert Carroll, Riki Hokama is
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1

excused t Jo Anne Johnson t Dain Kane t Michael Molina t

2

and Joseph Pontanilla.

3

for the time being.

4

Shannon.

5

Director t Mike Foley.

6

James Giroux t and also Mike Summers from the

7

Planning Department -- John.

8

sorrYt John Summers.

9

Director and a brother t you know t it's getting crazy

10

Michelle Anderson is excused

Our Staff members, Tammy and

From the Planning Department t our
From Corporation Counselt

Mike Summers.

I'm

So confusing having Mike as a

here.
Members t before we take any public testimonYt

11

12

I would like the members of the public to be

13

afforded the opportunity to see the presentation on

14

the update of the General Plan first t and then

15

should there be questions and comments t then we'll

16

take them afterwards.

17

that?

18

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

19

CHAIR TAVARES:

20

ITEM NO.1:

21

CHAIR TAVARES:

If there's any objection to

No objections.
OkaYt

thank you.

No objection.

UPDATES TO THE GENERAL PLAN (C.C. No. 05-75)
At this time I will turn the program

22

over -- Mike t do you have any opening comments you

23

would like to share with us?

24

MR. FOLEY:

No.

25

CHAIR TAVARES:

John does.
OkaYt Mr. Summers will leading this
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1

portion of the discussion.

2

lights down a little bit so we can see the screen

3

a -- see the wall a little better.

4

is PC I, Updates to the General Plan.

5

Note:

6

MR. SUMMERS:

We'll try to get the

By the way, this

PowerPoint presentation.

Thank you, Madam Chair, Members of the

7

Planning Committee, and the public for giving us an

8

opportunity to talk today about this very exciting

9

project, that is the update of the Maui County

10
11

General Plan.
Before we get into some of the timing and

12

status issues, I thought it would be helpful to go

13

back real quick and give a refresher of Bill 84,

14

some of the key elements in that legislation.

15

the members recall, the General Plan Bill, known as

16

Bill 84, was approved by the Council almost exactly

17

a year ago, on February 27th, 2004.

18

adoption of that bill was quite substantial from a

19

planning perspective.

20

piece of legislation, and put us at the forefront in

21

terms of planning-enabling statutes Statewide, if

22

not in the nation itself.

23

As

Bill 84, the

It was really a landmark

Bill 84 did several important things.

It

24

defined the legal status of the General plan and

25

Community Plans, it established a process for
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1

updating the General Plan and Community Plans,

2

including clarification on the public participation

3

process, Advisory Committees! the role of those

4

Committees, the role of the Planning Director, the

5

Commissions, and the Council.

6

process for amending the General Plan and Community

7

Plans and identified mandatory plan elements.

8

of these items were not in the previous legislation,

9

and this is going to really help us going forward

10
11

It also established a

Many

with this update.
Some of the key elements in Bill 84, Chapter

12

2.80B, Maui County Code, the new plan elements are

13

much more specific in this revised updated 2.80.

14

The legislation calls for a vision statement in the

15

planning document! a managed and directed growth

16

plan, including urban and rural growth boundaries

17

and other land use guidance tools.

18

the key elements that was missing from the previous

19

General Plan that the County had.

20

including identification of programs, projects, and

21

regulations.

22

elements, a financial element, and an implementation

23

schedule, monitoring activities, including

24

benchmarks and status reports, and a series of

25

technical plans to help guide the update.

That was one of

An action plan,

Implementation program, including CIP
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6

These activities can basically -- or elements

2

can be broken into three general areas:

the plan

3

development itself, the monitoring of the plan once

4

it's updated, and the implementation part.

5

legislation also clarified the Community Plan and

6

its relationship to the General Plan document.

7

Community Plan was operationalized as a system of

8

town and neighborhood plans which would include

9

policies for land use, urban design, recreation, and

The

The

10

other community features.

11

lot more specific as it relates to urban and rural

12

areas in the County.

13

These policies would be a

It also included an implementation plan

14

including CIP element, financial element,

15

implementation schedule, again, the monitoring

16

activities like benchmarks and status reports

17

concerning implementation.

18

infrastructure program that's being developed right

19

now is an important element in terms of setting up

20

the framework for the overall administering of this

21

new ordinance.

22

The managed

Going into the General plan update there are

23

a number of issues that -- kind of the big picture

24

issues that we have to deal with.

25

it relates to the other counties in the State, is

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS
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1

unique in that we have the three islands which

2

presents planning challenges, coordination issues.

3

There's a lot of detailed -- a lot of detailed

4

thinking has to go into the timing and logistics,

5

since General -- the General Plan Bill does require

6

island plans for Molokai, Lanai, as well as Maui.
Going forward, we're at a stage in the

7

8

County's history where we've seen rapid, rapid

9

expansion in population growth over the last 30

10

years.

11

over 46,000.

12

That's the resident population.

13

gain.

14

2,244 visitors per year in 1970 to 40,303, a gain of

15

1,696 percent.

16

that kind of expansion in population and visitor

17

count will certainly have an impact as we go forward

18

with the GP update.

19

In 1970 the County's population was just
In 2000 it had increased to 128,000.
That's 177 percent

On the visitor's side, we went from 40,000

Those are phenomenal numbers, and

The ratio of visitors to resident has gone

20

from roughly one visitor per 20 residents to one

21

visitor per three residents.

22

very, very diverse in terms of its ethnic makeup and

23

its cultures, and that type of socioeconomic

24

framework really needs to be carefully analyzed

25

going into this update.

The County's also

We've also seen a major
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1

transformation the last 30 years from agriculture to

2

tourism economy, where roughly one in three

3

residents are employed directly or indirectly by the

4

visitor industry.

5

increases in visitor plant, where we've gone from

6

roughly 2,743 visitor accommodation units to 17,869

7

between 1970 and 1990.

8

percent.

9

where the visitor plant is located, past visitor

And that correlates with

That's a gain of over 550

Which, again, as we look spacially at

10

industry development policies, we need to analyze

11

those policies in light of the type of expansion

12

we've seen in the visitor plant.

13

But recently we have seen diversification in

14

the economy, and those

15

played out in some of the technical studies that the

16

Department has been doing.

17

particular is the rate of growth in resident

18

population, housing, and jobs are higher than the

19

rate of growth for visitors, which indicates that

20

the economy is diversifying and it's not entirely

21

driven by tourism, which is a very positive sign

22

going forward.

23

that diversification has

What we've noticed in

Maui County still has large areas that are in

24

conservation and agriculture, which does provide us

25

with a lot of opportunities going forward.
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1

Relatively compared to the entire land area in the

2

CountYI small areas are zoned for urban and rural

3

development.

4

of opportunities going forward.

5

spaces.

6

We can look at new town planning.

7

to be in terms of having a lot of area to work with.

We have open

We can plan for transportation corridors.

We do have a number of major

8
9

Which, again, provides us with a lot

challenges going forward.

It's a good place

l

major

The cost of housing is

10

probably one of the most significant that we hear

11

and is having a profound effect on the social,

12

cultural fabric in the County as we start to exceed

13

$600,000 in median household price.
Infrastructure and public facilities are

14
15

severely strained, particularly in the area of

16

water.

17

and infrastructure, including highways, schools, and

18

other facilities that are growth related are

19

stretched.

20

Countywide

21

The natural environment in Maui County is also under

22

strain with the diversification of the visitor

23

industry.

24

remote pristine areas, we have seen some stress on

25

the visitor -- on the natural environment.

And other public facilities, most notably

Schools is a major, major problem
I

and highway infrastructure is as well.

As visitors get into some of the more
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2

10

can see an example of that.
The General Plan update is borrowing from the

3

very, very impressive Focus Maui Nui effort that's

4

been underway for over two years.

5

Nui plan was so comprehensive in its effort to

6

engage the public, and they did identify several

7

core values for the County, including stewardship of

8

natural and cultural resources, compassion and

9

understanding, respect for diversity, engagement and

The Focus Maui

10

empowerment of local people, honoring cultural

11

traditions, and history consideration of the needs

12

of future generations, commitment to local self

13

sufficiency, wisdom and balance in decision making,

14

and thoughtful island appropriate innovation.

15

we need to perpetuate those values going forward

16

with the General Plan update, particularly in the

17

areas of our land, our culture, and our families.

18

And

I think there's a much better understanding

19

today than there has been in the past of the

20

important link between the economy and our

21

environment as it relates to both quality of life

22

and our economic prosperity and our cultural

23

traditions.

24

terrible fire at Ah Fook's yesterday where we've now

25

lost not only Ah Fook's but also Ooka's is planned

And this is a tough time with even the
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1

to close.

And we need to perpetuate the culture

2

going forward.
In terms of the general philosophy that the

3

4

Planning Department has going forward, there are

5

roughly six key principles we're trying to keep in

6

mind.

7

to be grounded and rigorous.

8

depends

9

in the presentation, but the data, the information

The first being that the project really needs
And that really

- and we'll talk about more of this later

10

we have going forward is very, very important to

11

make sure that the recommendations and policy in the

12

plan are sound.

13

public involvement program needs to be very robust.

14

Over weighting public involvement early in the

15

process will save us a lot of time and grief in

16

going forward.

17

and Bill 84 sets the stage for that.

18

an approach with an attitude of aloha, respecting

19

Maui's unique sense of place.

20

be heavy lifting.

21

updates are very, very tough, hard work.

22

a long time to do.

23

go-for-broke attitude.

24
25

We also firmly believe that the

Fiscal accountability is critical,
Make sure it's

And this is going to

I mean, these General Plan
They take

So we need to approach it with a

The General Plan update is organized
have a planning team set up for the project.
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1

major prime consultant is Plan Pacific out of

2

Honolulu.

3

They've done several of the plans on the island of

4

Oahu.

5

this type of work.

6

studies, SMS Consulting is a leading firm in

7

Honolulu that does socioeconomic forecasting.

8

They're handling the socioeconomic studies.

9

Towill, well-known infrastructure planning firm, and

Plan Pacific did the Kauai General Plan.

They have a great reputation Statewide for
In terms of our technical

R. M.

10

planning firm is handling the public facility

11

assessment, and Wilson Okamoto is handling the

12

infrastructure.

13

including on the island Chris Hart & Partners, and a

14

facilitation team.

15

Plan Pacific has subcontractors,

If we could hit the -- hit the lights, we're

16

going to go to the boards at this point to talk a

17

little bit about the process, the schedule.

18

a basic concept diagram, a flow diagram showing how

19

the overall program is structured.

20

grounding part of the project is here with the

21

development of our socio-economic projections, our

22

land use forecasts, the infrastructure studies,

23

basically analyzing where we're at in terms of

24

capacity on the island -- on all three islands.

25

This is

Again, the

As we move forward, we start to get into some
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1

of our alternative analysis.

We've got the public

2

facilities studies, using the spacial growth model,

3

which is -- Blue Line Consulting is working on to do

4

some scenario forecasting, surveying our natural and

5

cultural resources to feed into the transportation

6

impact analysis side.

7

got public involvement streaming right along with

8

it, including General Plan Advisory Committee

9

meetings, workshops, stakeholder meetings, and the

Throughout this process we've

10

public hearings and Planning Commissions.

The

11

directed growth strategy comes a little bit later in

12

the process.

13

overall plan development phase.

The CIP plan pretty much wraps up the

14

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

15

CHAIR TAVARES:

16

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

John.

Go ahead.
John, do you have a chart like

17

that on an eight-and-a-half-by-eleven so that we can

18

see it more clearly?

19

MR. SUMMERS:

20

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

21

MR. SUMMERS:

22

I do.

I do.

If we can have copies later on.

But I can have them sent out, and I have

some of these with me today.

23

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

24

MR. SUMMERS:

25

Not with me today.

Thank you.

This is really a pretty straightforward

planning process in terms of putting together a
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1

General Plan or a Community Plan, updated

2

development, alternatives analysis, actually putting

3

together the plan and the process kind of dovetails

4

throughout the whole -- the whole series of events.

5

And again, the data development side is absolutely

6

critical if the plan1s going to be grounded.

7

The Department1s actively involved in

8

creating project maps that essentially tell us all

9

the different projects and the type of project that

10

are currently in process throughout the County.

11

We1re currently doing maps for Upcountry Maui, Paia,

12

Haiku, the Hana Community Plan region, as well as

13

Molokai and Lanai.

14

onto the new aerial photography that the

15

Department1s getting.

16

We1ve got the projects dropped

This is really a simplified phasing strategy

17

for the overall update.

Again, Phase I, we1re

18

dealing with our research, project kickoff,

19

community outreach meetings, initial plan

20

preparation, alternatives analysis, preliminary

21

drafting, public review.

22

this is not the only place where public review comes

23

in, but the public review related to the review of

24

the actual initial plan and then the final draft and

25

then all the public hearings.

This is essentially --
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And this is our two-and-a-half-year Gantt

1

2

Chart for the entire project, 170 tasks.

3

monumental -- monumental effort, but we're very,

4

very excited to be in the thick of it, doing the

5

heavy lifting at this point.

6

CHAIR TAVARES:

7

MR. SUMMERS:

8

CHAIR TAVARES:

9

Do you want questions now?
Sure.
Members, before we get into questions, I

recognize Councilmember Anderson, who joined us just

10

prior to our starting the PowerPoint.

11

being here.

12
13

14

So it's a

Thank you for

Members, any questions at this time?
Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

When is the public going to have an

15

opportunity to provide comment to the presentation,

16

before we get into a discussion or while we're in a

17

discussion?

18

CHAIR TAVARES:

No, if we had questions first about the

19

presentation, I was going to take those questions

20

first and then we go into the public testimony.

21

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you.

22

CHAIR TAVARES:

23

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Ms. Anderson.
Madam Chair, it's very difficult

24

for us and the public to follow along with this

25

because I can't read any of these charts.
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1

any way that he could have someone from the

2

Department print these off his computer and bring

3

them over so we can follow what's going on?

4

it seems like this is pretty relevant information

5

here.

6
7

CHAIR TAVARES:

10

I think Mr. Summers is handing

something to our Staff there.
John, is one of those papers the Gantt

8
9

Yes.

I mean,

schedule?
MR. SUMMERS:

Thank you, Madam Chair, the Gantt is

11

extremely difficult to read, unless you blow it up,

12

so we've only got it on the board.

13

CHAIR TAVARES:

It might be part of our working with you

14

folks to look at that Gantt schedule and pick out

15

the major milestones on that and put that into a

16

form that we all could

17

time.

18

- could look at at the same

Any other question, Mr. Kane?

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I know we're using acronyms, maybe

19

for our benefit, as well as the public, Gantt, I

20

guess, what does that mean?

21

CHAIR TAVARES:

Gantt I think was named after the person

22

who invented the system, Mr. Gantt, if I'm not

23

mistaken, but it's a scheduling of projects over a

24

period of time.

25

also call PERT charts, which is I think what we

And it's also related to what they
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1

might be more familiar with, as we see it in CIP

2

projects, where you allot certain amounts of time to

3

different phases up and through a completion of a

4

certain project.

5

Mr. Summers wants to go into any more detail about

6

what that might be.

7

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

8

CHAIR TAVARES:

9

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

10

11

I don't know if Mr. Foley or

It's that final chart, Chair, that --

Yes, uh-huh.
The one with all the little lines

that are going across?
CHAIR TAVARES:

Uh-huh.

So basically it's a time line,

12

and what you can't see on there is it's spread out

13

from 2005 to 2007, John, is that correct, on your

14

Gantt Chart?

15

MR. SUMMERS:

16

CHAIR TAVARES:

That's correct.
And then the bars that are coming across

17

are the times allotted for completion of that

18

specific task, all the way down to the bottom, which

19

is the adoption of the General Plan.

20

lot of information in there that we probably don't

21

need to be too concerned about, as long as the

22

benchmarks are met.

23

this Committee will allow the Department to tell us

24

where they are in the process from time to time, and

25

maybe that's the one, John, I was mentioning that

So there's a

And I think having this item in
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1

could look at some of the major milestones in that

2

process and just have a condensed version of your

3

detailed chart.

4

MR. SUMMERS:

5

CHAIR TAVARES:

6

Absolutely.
That would be very helpful.

Ms. Anderson.

7

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

8

CHAIR TAVARES:

9

Thank you,

Hello.

I was the voice in the wilderness.

Okay.

All right, at this time, Members, any other

10

questions about the presentation?

11

the public testimony at this point, so if we

12

could -

13

Actually, he's the only person I have signed up to

14

testify so far.

15

sign up, it's fine, any other members.

16

put a cover over that projector lens.

first person to testify, Dick Mayer.

So if you just want to come up and
You want to
Great.

Okay.

. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY.

17

18

I'd like to have

MR. MAYER:

Thank you.

Thank you, Council Members.

My

19

name is Dick Mayer.

I just want to comment on the

20

presentation today and on this process.

21

all, we keep talking about the General Plan, and we

22

have to remember that there are actually three

23

General Plans, one for each of the islands.

24

the process will be going on, and I guess the

25

question will be are they going parallel?
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1

going sequentially?

2

determine as well.

3

committees meeting, and as far as I know, there's no

4

effort made to integrate the three together.

5

something you folks should think about is when you

6

prioritize things and prepare the General Plan for

7

the County, is there going to be some kind of an

8

umbrella document to cover the items.

9

That's something you'll have to
And there will be three separate

So

The chart up there talks about the

10

development of the plan itself.

11

me, based on my experience, and probably your

12

experience as well over the last ten years since the

13

last plan -

14

developed was what happens after the plan gets done?

15

And I would like to see that chart up there actually

16

to have several columns on the right side of it, I

17

don't know if you can imagine a legal-sized document

18

lined horizontally which talks about implementation

19

of the plan and enforcement.

20

sure that when we go through this whole long process

21

as a community, that we will have, then, the ability

22

to make sure that the plan is implemented and that

23

it will be enforced.

24

25

What most concerns

more than ten years now

- was

I would like to make

I think my experience -- and I've sat through
a lot of meetings with all of you here at the

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

20

PC 2/28/05

1

Council is rarely does the General Plan even get

2

mentioned after it was adopted.

3

Community Plans and what have you! and I'd hate to

4

go through this massive! monumental effort involving

5

lots and lots of people without us really thinking

6

about once that plan is adopted, how do we make sure

7

that in fact it does guide the County and have the

8

tools in there?

9

from prioritizing -- not just saying the following

We talk about

And that would involve everything

10

200 items are good directions! but rather trying to

11

indicate which items are priority items, which ones

12

have to be done in order for the next step to go

13

forth.
And I would also urge the Council to begin

14
15

considering now, so when the plan is eventually

16

adopted, the ability -- what happens if the plan

17

says we're going to develop this area or that area

18

and the water, the schools, the hospitals, the

19

roads, the sewage, the other infrastructure is not

20

ready?

21

say that this project or this area, even though it's

22

zoned for some area or community planned for some

23

area, may not be ready to be developed, that those

24

types of things have to be -- that's all part of the

25

General Plan process, but I would hope it would be

Will the County have the tools to be able to

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS! INC.
(808) 524-2090

PC 2/28/05

21

1

not like the previous one, which has a lot of nice

2

statements in there which sound good but not the

3

mechanisms to implement them.

4

for the time.

5
6

7

CHAIR TAVARES:
testifier?

Thank you.

Thank you very much

Any questions for the

Mr. Kane.

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Just trying to understand, Mr. Mayer,

8

you made a comment about we hardly ever mention the

9

General Plan once it's been adopted.

It's my

10

understanding that the Community Plans, which are

11

often referenced, and the General Plan is one and

12

the same thing.

13

MR. MAYER:

Well, the

14

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

The Community Plans are -- you've got

15

a General Plan and the Community Plans are what's

16

consistent with the basic guidance of the General

17

Plan.

18

items, and that's what are always being referenced.

19

But it's one and the same document, isn't it?

20

MR. MAYER:

And the Community Plans are the more specific

I don't -- it should be an integrated planning

21

mechanism.

All too often, though, the General Plan

22

got done, then the Community Plans went to work and

23

they were so busy putting land parcels down and

24

verbiage down for their own district that they never

25

really reflected back on the General Plan.
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1

went to the Planning Department, it went to the

2

Council, various committees, and eventually the

3

Community Plans were adopted.

4

there was ever even a check to see whether the

5

Community Plans in fact did implement what the

6

General Plan said was going to happen.

7

oftentimes there may have even been contrary

8

statements, but I'm not sure anybody ever checked

9

whether they were really consistent.

10

And I'm not sure if

And

So in the final package, which you folks

11

when you get a proposal for project before the

12

Council, there may be inconsistencies in the

13

Community Plans and the General Plan.

14

which one takes precedence.

15

have rules that says which one takes precedence over

16

the other if there's an inconsistency.

17

think they've really been verified.

18

part of the planning tool.

19

want to make sure that you folks have ten-year

20

terms, that the next group of people over the next

21

decade will be able to take that General plan that

22

you folks are going to work very hard on and be able

23

to implement it.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I'm not sure

I don't think we even

I don't

They're all

What I want to see is I

Thank you, Mr. Mayer.

Thank you, Chair.
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1

CHAIR TAVARES:

Thank you.

2

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Ms. Johnson.

Thank you for coming today.

I

3

really appreciate it, Dick.

One of the things I

4

think just apropos of the comment that you're making

5

is that how do you see the work in the General

6

Plan -

7

Plans say these are the things that we don't want t

8

but all of a sudden in the General Plan now it's

9

determined t well

particularly when some of the Community

t

we have to have a certain type of

10

infrastructure t it might be a landfill t it might be

11

a resource center for homeless people t

12

something that t you know

13

see the General Plant then t incorporating the

14

inconsistency that you're talking about?

15

know in some of the Community Plans they're not

16

going to want those kind of things t but they have to

17

be placed somewhere.

18

with always being consistent with what the Community

19

Plan wants when a Community Plant none of them may

20

want a particular type of infrastructure.

21

MR. MAYER:

t

it might be

even a prison t how do you

Because I

So how do you see that working

And I think you probably know the answer to

22

that t and that is that it rests on your shoulders.

23

The Council is the group that in the end will have

24

to make that kind of decision t whether it be a new

25

prison t a new landfill t another t quote/unquote t
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social negative.

2

to have this item and this is the best place for it.

3

And because you both approve the Community Plans and

4

the General Plan, you will in the end -- the Council

5

in the end, will be -- and the Mayor signing, will

6

be in the end the decision makers as to where those

7

things go.

8

us -- nobody would want those items in their area,

9

it obviously will have to go some place and somebody

10

11

They will have to say yes, we have

I mean, although, you know, none of

will have to make the decision for it.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

But do you think, Dick, that in

12

the discussion, particularly when we give the

13

mandate to the individuals that will serve on the

14

Advisory Committees, do you think that they should

15

be told that up front as part of the information

16

that, hey, look, the Community Plans may say X, Y,

17

z,

18

could be made as to where it would be best to place

19

that infrastructure taking into account all of the

20

various Community Plans.

21

realistic, you know, or helpful to have that

22

information given to those people that will be

23

hopefully making recommendations to us?

24
25

but maybe there are recommendations, then, that

MR. MAYER:

Do you think that would be

Yeah, I think it would be helpful to them to

know it.

Now, since the General Plan comes before
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1

the Community Plan, some of those things may already

2

be actually in the General Plan when it's given and

3

then the COIT@unity Plans will have to follow that.

4

In other case, let's take ten years from now after

5

the General Plan has been adopted, eight years from

6

now, and you want to all of a sudden have some new

7

social negative, whatever it might be, a new

8

helicopter port or whatever it might be, noisy

9

activity, you will then perhaps have to go in and

10

update the Community Plan, and that's what Bill 84 I

11

think gives you the ability to do is to update it

12

based on new circumstances.

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

14

MR. MAYER:

Okay.

Hopefully, if the -- you know, if the public

15

likes what you've done, they'll vote you back in.

16

If they don't like what you've done, they'll vote

17

you out.

18

have to be responsive to the whole community.

I mean, that will be -- because you'll

19

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

20

CHAIR TAVARES:

Okay, thanks very much, Dick.

Any other questions for Mr. Mayer?

21

not, thank you very much.

22

Ms. Anderson.

23
24
25

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

If

Oh, I'm sorry.

Thank you, Madam Chair.

Just a

quick follow-up.
Mr. Mayer, thanks for coming.

Your testimony
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1

centered around lack of implementation of the

2

General Plan and the Community Plan, and we

3

basically have two ways to implement these plans,

4

and one is through the development process where the

5

planning

6

projects is supposed to layout how the project is

7

consistent with the General Plan and the Community

8

Plans.

9

from the Planning Department they only address those

10

policies or objectives in the plan that the proposal

11

is in consistency with and leaves out lots of

12

policies and objectives that it's not consistent

13

with.

14

Planning Department in their review of

Oftentimes what we see is in the reports

The other way we have of implementing the

15

Community and General Plans is through the budget

16

process.

17

from one Administration to another there's little,

18

if any, focus on implementing the actions of -- the

19

required actions of the Community Plan through the

20

budget process.

21

And I found over the years that oftentimes

So my question to you is do you see a

22

mechanism that could strengthen the requirement to

23

review all policies and objectives of the General

24

Plan and Community Plan in relationship to a

25

proposed development?
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MR. MAYER:

I think you mentioned -- certainly budget is

2

certainly one.

I think the requirement that you now

3

have that you're going to be getting status reports

4

every so often at the Council level of things that

5

are happening will give you some input, and it will

6

be up to you to take actions.

7

feel that these projects are being approved or these

8

things are being done improperly, you will hopefully

9

have the ability as a future Council to be able to

If you as a Council

10

correct things.

11

the fact in some cases, but at least I think you can

12

give direction that, hey, we want to protect our

13

shorelines or we want to protect the -- this quality

14

of life here, or whatever it might be, and if

15

somehow a project was approved, you'll have those

16

mechanisms hopefully to do it.

17

You may not be able to do it after

In advance, getting good information -- let

18

me give an example.

On the chart that we just saw a

19

minute ago they talked about the fact that there was

20

17,000 hotel rooms on the island.

21

on that chart were all the vacation rentals, because

22

we do not have a proper vacation rental ordinance.

23

And until we have one, that number is going to be

24

woefully under the actual number, which is probably

25

more in the order of 25 to 30,000 units
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1

vacation units available.

2

information, all of that is part of the package.
So having

3

And so until we get good

what I'm really saying is what

4

we all know, and I don't have to preach to you on

5

this.

6

the end.

7

getting us to the process of having a document, what

8

we then need to do is figure out how do we implement

9

it.

You know, having a final plan document is not
That's really the beginning, and this is

And budget, enforcement, close eye by the

10

Council to make sure things are being followed

11

properly, getting good people on the Planning

12

Commission, all those types of things are the goal

13

really of a good Council, I think.

14

with the Mayor and the Planning Department hopefully

15

we'll be able to do it correctly.

16

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

17

CHAIR TAVARES:

18

And together

Thank you, Dick.

Any other questions for Mr. Mayer?

Thank

you very much, Mr. Mayer.

19

MR. MAYER:

Thank you very much.

20

MR. FOLEY:

Madam Chairman, could I respond to Mr. Mayer's

21

questions?

22

CHAIR TAVARES:

23

MR. FOLEY:

24

CHAIR TAVARES:

25

Later on.

Okay.
After we're done with this testimony part.

Thank you.
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1

Thank you, Dick.

2

Mr. Vicens.

3

MR. VICENS:

Chairman Tavares, Members of the Committee,

4

just a couple comments after watching what I saw up

5

here.

6

was a change in direction with the General Plan

7

versus the Community Plan.

8

Plan was kind of a guideline.

9

with the Bill 84, specifically 2.80B, is made it the

I think you know that after three years there

Previously the General
What you've done now

10

driver.

11

Advisory Committee will then be the plan for the

12

County of Maui, Molokai, and Lanai, as I see it.

13

So whatever comes out of the General Plan

Where I have a concern is how do we bridge

14

back to the communities?

15

representatives

16

deciding the fate of our communities.

17

bring back not only to the current Community Plan to

18

make sure that we're consistent in what we're trying

19

to achieve, but we need to get feedback from them as

20

to the direction we want to move.

21

see us have a document that determines what's going

22

to happen without the proper feedback.

23

We've got two

- or three representatives per area
We need to

I would hate to

And I think, you know, from my perspective we

24

need to go back to the community and talk to them,

25

come back to the group and that type of thing and
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1

back and forth so that when we arrive, everybody is

2

in sync, the community understands what's been going

3

on for a six- or eight-month period of time, they

4

understand what's going to happen within Paia-Haiku

5

community, et cetera.

6

important that we remember that, because the driver

7

is different this time around.

8
9

And I think it's very

And I guess the second half of the -- my
concern is we have community plans in effect now.

10

The other day I heard you mention 2.80A, 2.80B, when

11

does one falloff and the other take place and where

12

does that leave the Community Plans?

13

words, if a Community Plan is not due to be looked

14

at for eight or ten years, does that still hold,

15

even though you've passed a new General Plan that

16

may have changes to the ten-year CAC plan, for

17

instance, Wailuku-Kahului?

18

In other

So those are some of the things that I've

19

been thinking about, and I think it's -- for me it's

20

very important that the community that we represent

21

or whoever represents is in tune with what's going

22

on with the General Plan.

23

somebody make a decision 25 or 26 people make a

24

decision, it's stamped by the Planning Director and

25

the Mayor, and the community doesn't agree, because

I would hate to see
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1

then we've wasted a lot of people's time.

And I

2

would hate to see that, because I think it's a great

3

opportunity to take us into the future.

4

know, if you've got

5

everything will turn out right.

6

path that will take us where we want, then exactly

7

what Dick said can happen, we'll sit back ten years

8

from now figuring out what went on.

9

certainly don't need to be able to be in that

And, you

if you've got the right path,
But if there is no

And we

10

position, because I think we know better today.

11

Thank you.
. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY.

12

13

CHAIR TAVARES:

Thank you.

Any questions for Mr. Vicens?

14

If not, thank you very much for sharing your

15

comments with us.
Anyone else in the audience wish to share

16
17

comments with us about this presentation?

18

seeing nobody jumping out of their seats and running

19

down the aisle, we will close public testimony for

20

this item, PC-I, thank you.
At this time, Planning Department, would you

21
22

23

Okay,

care to make some comments?
MR. FOLEY:

Thank you, Madam Chair.

I wanted to respond

24

to some of the questions that were asked by Dick

25

Mayer, and actually some of the comments also by
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Members of the Council and Mr. Vicens.
First of all, with respect to the number of

2

3

General Plans, Mr. Mayer's correct, there will

4

actually be four general plans.

5

overall General Plan, a policy document somewhat

6

similar to the one we have now, which will have

7

overall policies that will be applicable to all

8

all the islands, to Maui, to Molokai, to Lanai, and

9

to Kahoolawe.

There will be an

In addition to that overall umbrella General

10
11

Plan, which will be pretty much a policy document,

12

there will also be three island plans.

13

be the Maui Island Plan, which will be by far the

14

most complicated and most extensive, and there will

15

also be island plans for Molokai and Lanai.

16

charts that John presented to you do have schedules

17

for the preparation of all four of those general

18

plans.

There will

The

The second point I wanted to make was with

19

20

respect to timing of development instead of just

21

goals.

22

General Plans will be that we will have growth

23

strategies and alternatives to look at, and we will

24

have maps for the first time and there will be urban

25

growth boundaries.

One of the primary features of the new

And it's quite likely that we'll
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1

have presented on those maps phases of development;

2

in other words, areas where there should be

3

development for the first ten years of the planning

4

period and then development for the next 15 years of

5

the planning period.

6

The planning period has been extended from

7

2020 to 2030 because we've discovered that that's

8

the time line that's being used by various

9

government agencies.

So we've had to change our

10

data gathering and analysis phase at the beginning

11

to reflect that new time period.

12

be preparing general plans for a 25-year period.

13

The first time period of five or ten years will be

14

much more clearer than the second time period up to

15

the year 2025.

16

So we'll basically

The -- as Mr. Kane said, the Community plans

17

are portions of the General Plan, they're chapters

18

of the General Plan, and they are the portions of

19

the General Plan that are used by us, the Planning

20

Department, on a daily basis.

21

Community Plans in our staff reports, we refer to

22

them in our meetings with applicants and property

23

owners, and the Community Plans are used

24

extensively.

25

We do refer to the

The part of the Community Plans that have
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1

been kind of confusing in the past is that some of

2

the statements in the Community Plans are mandatory

3

and some of them are permissive.

4

the Community Plan says there shall be a road in

5

this location, that's mandatory.

6

Plan, on the other hand, says there should be

7

affordable housing in this neighborhood, that's

8

permissive.

9

affordable housing in that neighborhood.

In other words, if

If the Community

There mayor may not end up to be

So we have a bit of confusion, and have had

10
11

for a long time, about the language in the Community

12

Plans and their use as law.

13

specifically at the Community Plans in order to

14

determine whether the statements in the Community

15

Plans are mandatory or not, but they are elements of

16

the General Plan, and Bill 84 clarified that.

17

84 made it much more obvious that the Community

18

Plans are considered to be portions of the General

19

Plan.

20

The

We have to look very

Bill

- Mr. Mayer was also correct in saying

21

that the ultimate decision with respect to the

22

unpopular land uses, like prisons and landfills,

23

will fallon the shoulders of the Council members.

24

When the Council members review the island plans for

25

Maui, Molokai, and Lanai, it will be necessary, for

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

PC 2/28/05

35

1

instance! on Maui to reconcile that none of the

2

community members that are on the General Plan

3

Advisory Committee may be terribly thrilled with the

4

idea of the prison or the landfill being in their

5

neighborhood! so it will probably fall to the Staff!

6

the Public Works Department! the State recommending

7

the location! and the Council making that ultimate

8

decision.

9

unpopular.

But there will be land uses that will be

And one of the benefits of this process is

10
11

that for the first time we'll have an island plan on

12

Maui that reconciles the seven Community Plans on

13

Maui.

14

conflict with each other! and we have some

15

statements in the Community Plans that could be

16

interpreted to be in conflict with the General Plan.

17

But we should be able to solve that problem with the

18

island wide plans.

19

by far the most onerous of the 176 tasks on the

20

Gantt Chart that John showed earlier! but it will

21

both provide an opportunity to reconcile the

22

Community Plans and it will also provide an

23

opportunity to find locations for those land uses

24

that frankly nobody's really going to want to

25

embrace.

Because now we have some Community Plans that

The island-wide plan for Maui is
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The other point that I wanted to address was

2

the point that Mr. Vicens made about feedback from

3

the community.

4

this process is that we will be getting feedback

5

from the community all the way through the process.

6

This General Plan update is not designed to have a

7

plan prepared by the Advisory Committee and the

8

Planning Commission and the Council and then go to

9

public hearings.

10
11

One of the things that you'll see in

That would be a disaster.

That

would cost us an extra couple of years.
What we are instead intending to do is go to

12

the community at the beginning and all the way

13

through the process, not only with the 25-member

14

Advisory Committee for Maui, but also meet with

15

community associations, meet with organizations, and

16

we have a proposal for an event called a future fair

17

where it basically is kind of like a trade show at a

18

convention where you have booths by all kinds of

19

organizations and you have opportunities for people

20

to look at what proposals are being made by the

21

contractors associations, the various

22

draft urban growth boundary maps will be available

23

at that time.

24

lot of interchange between groups like that.

25

maybe the

There will be an opportunity for a

The other thing I wanted to comment on that
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1

nobody has specifically brought up yet, but a

2

question that we anticipated, was when is the

3

General Plan Advisory Committee going to be

4

appointed and how does that process work.

5

reason that we haven't come to you yet and asked you

6

to appoint the Advisory Committee is that frankly

7

we're not quite ready yet.

8

many sections, specifies where the -- or kind of how

9

the Advisory Committee is appointed.

The

And Bill 84, among its

And you'll

10

probably recall that each of you get to appoint a

11

couple members and the Mayor gets to appoint some

12

members.

13

What we're doing now with respect to the

14

Advisory Committee is to, first of all, prepare some

15

guidelines as to organizations that you might want

16

to consider having represented on those General

17

on your choices when you appoint General Plan

18

Advisory Committee; for instance, people that were

19

on the Advisory Committees for the Community Plans

20

in the various nine Community Plan areas, people

21

that have that experience and can bring that history

22

to the group.

23

Association, the environmental organizations, the

24

Realtors, the architects, a number of those

25

organizations have already chosen people that they

Also groups like the Contractors
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1

hope are representatives of their organizations.

2

So we'll be -- first of all, we'll be giving you

3

some guidance that you can accept or ignore as to

4

various different groups that you might want to try

5

to get represented on those -- on your -- when you

6

make your appointments to the Advisory Committee.
The other thing that we're doing is we're

7

8

beginning to put together orientation sessions for

9

these 25 people, because we recognize that some of

10

them will be very familiar with the geography of the

11

island and some of them will not be.

12

will be very familiar with the issues and will have

13

been participating like some members of the audience

14

have been participating in years and will be

15

familiar with Bill 84 and they'll be familiar with

16

the issues of water, affordable housing,

17

transportation, inadequate schools, et cetera.

Some of them

18

So in order to create a level playing field,

19

we're going to prepare orientation sessions for the

20

Advisory Committee that will give them information

21

about what does the State law say should be in a

22

General Plan, what does the Charter say is the role

23

of the General Plan, what is Bill 84 all about, and

24

how

25

the Community Plan in this County.

how are we to -- what is our vision for using
So we'll be
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1

preparing orientation sessions.

What we hope to do

2

is to have the Council grant us a little time to do

3

these orientation sessions before they officially

4

start the clock running on the period of time in

5

Bill 84 that they can meet.

6

the Advisory Committee starts too soon, they'll end

7

too soon, and we need to have this pretty carefully

8

orchestrated.

Because, frankly,

if

And one of the things you probably need to

9

10

know is that the Gantt Chart that John showed you is

11

probably the third or fourth version, and there will

12

be new versions every month or two for the next two

13

and a half years because the tasks time periods

14

shift as we discover that data is too old or data is

15

inaccurate or, you know, we run into various

16

problems with the analyses.

17

kind of -- kind of a chart, excuse me.

18

Mr. Gantt intended it to be that way exactly, but

19

those -- we have already shifted various tasks from

20

the Planning Department to the consultants and from

21

the consultants to the Planning Department as it's

22

been -- become more obvious in who has the data and

23

who is best equipped to collect and analyze the

24

data.

25

That is a moving fluid
I'm not sure

So we're in a data collection mode now.
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1

We're collecting and analyzing information about how

2

much commercial land do we need if the population

3

grows 10,000 people, how much land do we need if it

4

grows 25,000 people, how much residential land do we

5

need in apartments and affordable housing and in

6

single family dwellings, how many schools do we need

7

for 10,000, for 20,000, how many fire stations and

8

where.

9

We're working with the Manager's Office with respect

We're collecting that kind of information.

10

to that, the infrastructure and public facilities

11

project that has been described to you.

12

So anyway, that

- I just wanted to add that

13

and to respond to Mr. Mayer's questions and also the

14

comments by Mr. Kane and Mr. Vicens.

15

questions for me?

16
17

18

CHAIR TAVARES:

Thank you.

Are there any

Any questions or comments?

Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Mike, in terms of the studies

19

and I know there have been some that have been

20

completed and now they're getting a little bit out

21

dated again.

22

MR. FOLEY:

Right.

23

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

What is the process that you're

24

going to use for actually bringing those up to

25

speed?

Will you have to put out a new RFP for the
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1

consultant or will you be able to just integrate

2

that within your Department?

3

MR. FOLEY:

It's actually a combination of both.

Some of

4

the background reports that we've had done over the

5

last several years are usable and accurate, and

6

others have had some holes in them.

7

problem we've discovered is that we've only learned,

8

I don't know, four months ago or six months ago that

9

the State had a different time horizon than we did,

The biggest

10

and so we've had to extend out the numbers of our

11

projections for population, housing, commercial, et

12

cetera, and some of that work we have done ourselves

13

because we can collect that information faster than

14

a consultant on Oahu, but some of it we're going to

15

have to have done by the -- by the consultants.

16

it's a combination of both depending on what it is.

17

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

So

Have you had any luck at

18

all -- because I know that Mr. Mayer brought up the

19

subject of vacation rentals, and because we don't

20

have a handle on that, I know for a long while we've

21

been trying to get the information from the State

22

with who's paying GET or TAT.

23

at all getting that information through the State?

24
25

MR. FOLEY:

Again, it's yes and no.

Have you had any luck

I've -- we've been

communicating and talking with a gentleman who just
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did a TVR study for the island of Kauai, and he's in

2

the process of sending us a copy of that report.

3

Basically they had the same questions that we had,

4

how many units -- how many TVRs do they have and

5

which ones are paying proper taxes and which ones

6

are assessed as TVRs instead of houses on a -- you

7

know, on a farm.

8

that study is meeting with various different

9

organizations on Maui, including the County, to see

And that gentleman who prepared

10

if several of us will fund such a study for Maui.

11

Now that he's perfected the procedure on Kauai, he

12

thinks that he can do a study through the State and

13

the real estate -

14

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

15

MR. FOLEY:

RAM, Real -Realtors Association.

- Realtors Association of Maui.

And also

16

there's a Transient Vacation Rental Association led

17

by Dr. Dantes.

18

talked to us about having a similar study to try to

19

get a better handle on that number.

20

aware of that missing link, and we're trying to

21

figure out the cheapest and most expeditious way of

22

answering that question.

23

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

24

MR. FOLEY:

25

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

He's met with both of them and

So we are very

Yeah, and don't forget accurate.

Yeah, and accurate, yeah.
The last question I have, Madam
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1

Chair, is with regard to costs of community

2

services.

3

information is made available to the people when

4

they're going through this process, they may have a

5

better idea to time-wise or tax-wise what's going

6

on.

7

issue of cost of community services, or will that

8

not be a part of this?

9

Because I know that many times if that

So how do we

MR. FOLEY:

- or how are we addressing the

No, it's an integral part of it, and it's

10

required in Bill 84.

11

we did when Bill 84 was adopted is we started

12

preparing carrying capacity reports for various

13

different areas.

14

one for West Maui.

15

those were actually presented to you or not, but

16

they were presented in the communities.

17

talk about the necessity -- well, the location and

18

the adequacy of schools, fire stations, water

19

distribution, the number of wells, et cetera.

20

worked with the Fire Department, the Water

21

Department, and the DOE, and we prepared these

22

carrying capacity reports for various different

23

areas.

24
25

One of the first things that

We did one for South Maui.

We did

And I don't remember whether

And they

The other thing that we did that's
represented on one of these boards is that we
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started preparing these project area maps that show

2

the development activity in different areas.

3

one that's here is Central Maui, but this shows

4

development projects that have been approved,

5

projects that are under construction, projects that

6

are being reviewed, projects that are more

7

conceptual but we know quite a bit about.

8

enables us to try to help us figure out where it's

9

most feasible to extend infrastructure.

The

And this

10

And it's also very helpful in looking at --

11

for instance, with the Fire Department we can meet

12

with the Fire Department and tell them that, you

13

know, this is how many units are proposed at Maui

14

Lani, this is how many are at Kehalani, this is how

15

many are proposed Maalaea, and, you know, start

16

talking to them about where they want their next

17

fire station, which happens to be Haiku, but this

18

kind of a process is very instrumental for the

19

General Plan, as well as we're using it at the

20

monthly Planning Commission meetings as well so that

21

when we have a traffic engineer make a presentation

22

about the traffic for the new Safeway across from

23

the new Kaiser clinic in Kahului, we can say these

24

are the other 20 projects in the vicinity that are

25

included in the traffic report and this -- here's
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the map showing the reason why.

2

The other thing I wanted to say with respect

3

to your question was that the Bill 84 adds strength

4

to the language about the capital improvement plan

5

being tied to the budget.

6

the County Code carefully and you read other

7

sections of County regulations you'll see that

8

there's always been a requirement -- or for a long

9

time there's been a requirement that the CIP plan

If you read the -

read

10

each year be compared to the General Plan, and that

11

frankly hasn't been done in the past, and part of

12

the reason is probably because the General Plan

13

itself, the policy document includes lots of

14

motherhood and apple pie kind of goals and policies

15

but it doesn't provide any real direction about, you

16

know, the more complicated locational issues.

17

there was a reluctance by everybody to use the

18

community plans because, for one thing, they're not

19

always consistent with one another, and secondly, it

20

requires a significantly more detailed analysis of

21

all those CIP projects.

22

And

But Bill 84 requires us to take a much more

23

detailed look at CIP projects and to analyze, you

24

know, whether it makes sense to extend a major

25

waterline from one Community Plan to another
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Community Plan area to another t and it will require

2

us also to take a look at the fact that one -- two

3

of our Community Plans have prohibitions of water

4

being transferred from their Community Plan areas to

5

other Community Plan areas.

6

island-wide plan's going to have to reconcile that.

7

If the water doesn't comet you know t from UpcountrYt

8

where does it come from?

9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And t you know t the

And I appreciate t you know t the

10

information that you're giving us tOOt because I

11

think you're looking at carrying capacity of what

12

can we accommodate t where can we accommodate that

13

most cost effectivelYt and I guess what I'm

14

referring tOt thought would be the cost of community

15

services that let's say American Farmland Trust

16

would dOt where they show t okaYt to provide a

17

service or to provide these services in a rural area

18

or in a certain areat it would cost X number of

19

dollars out of let's say a person's tax bill t this

20

is what the percentage iS t and then comparing that

21

with what that same cost of service would come out

22

to be in an urban setting where the services are

23

much more readily available to that area.

24
25

So I think -

and this would just be my

little t you know t plug I guess for the kinds of
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1

studies for American Farmland Trust, which is why I

2

think we put some additional money in

3

to put money in the last time into the budget would

4

be that when you're looking at those services and

5

actually providing in those really remote areas, I

6

think people should understand that somebody -

7

it's really not cost effective to offer, you know,

8

that kind of service to that area, who is going to

9

subsidize that?

- or I tried

if

Who is, then, going to pay for that

10

individual building out in a remote area?

11

there sufficient revenue or can we even tax that

12

individual commensurate with what the impact is that

13

they're actually creating.

14

And is

So that's kind of where I'm going with the

15

cost of community service study that I'm looking at,

16

not so much at the capacity.

17

but do we really want to have development in an area

18

when the burden would then be shifted onto other

19

taxpayers that live in more urban areas?

20

MR. FOLEY:

We have the capacity,

I think you'll find that we're looking at that

21

in a more macro, more general style, but not in the

22

financial or fiscal analysis level that you're

23

referring to.

24

the Fire Department to look at, you know, the cost

25

efficiency of building a fire station in Kipahulu

You know, we'll be -- we'll be asking
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1

versus requiring people to have sprinkler systems t

2

and we are placing a lot of emphasis on encouraging

3

development where infrastructure already exists and

4

using in-fill development in areas where we already

5

have water distribution and schools and sewer

6

treatment plants.

7

treatment plants t you know t whether it be Maalaea or

8

Olowalu t

9

it's going to be the Council that decides whether or

Because building new sewer

is an extremely expensive endeavor.

And

10

not you replace the one in Kahului and

11

know t basically we're telling developers that t yeah t

12

you can propose development at Maalaea or Olowalu

13

but don't forget the fire station t the elementary

14

school t and the sewer treatment plant t because all

15

of those are going to have to be part of Phase I of

16

the development.

17

- butt you

t

The County can't subsidize that level of

18

infrastructure in the future.

19

gotten so far behind t you know t now t but we're not

20

going to -

21

have a fiscal analysis of the level that you're --

22

you're referring to.

23

really interesting to have t but I don't know how

24

much it would cost or

25

That's how we've

I meant the budget doesn't currently

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

It would be -- it would be

BasicallYt just t you know t if --
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1

and I know Mr. Boteilho has the copy of the cost of

2

community services book that was put out by AFT.

3

recollection is that it's very cost effective to

4

have them just prepare the study.

5

not want to do it Countywide! I guess my

6

recommendation would be get them to maybe do one

7

plan area and then see if you're pleased with the

8

results of that.

9

help us from a real property tax perspective to look

So while you may

Because I think that will also

10

at -- just like we do water rates! you know! who

11

should pay for what.

12

make it clear to those individuals! you know, who

13

are subsidizing that we are subsidizing.

And where we're subsidizing!

Thank you.

Thank you! Madam Chair.

14

15

My

CHAIR TAVARES:

Thank you.

Mike or John! could you give

16

us any kind of idea about when you're thinking now?

17

You know! I'm looking at one of the handouts where

18

you have July '05 as the phase for the research

19

outreach! and then somewhere between July '05 and

20

January '06 would be the community outreach

21

meetings! the GPAC orientation meetings! and the

22

Maui Future Fair.

23

approximately when we might be looking at appointing

24

the members to that GPAC?

25

MR. SUMMERS:

Do you have any date in mind

That would be June! July of '05.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

June, July, okay.

The only reason

2

I ask is because we're getting questions about it,

3

and I think it's helpful if we have some sort of

4

frame mind to tell the constituents.

5

have been sending us applications, and I'm sure

6

you've been getting them also for membership on

7

these -- on the GPACs.

8

you.

9

Some people

Okay, so, June, July.

Thank

Any questions, Members?

VICE-CHAIR MATEO:

10

CHAIR TAVARES:

11

VICE-CHAIR MATEO:

Chairman.

Mr. Mateo.
Chairman, thank you very much.

And

12

this -- I guess, Mr. Foley, you know, taking a look

13

at the structure itself, you know, we're looking at

14

a very hectic process for the next number of months.

15

And you come from a Department that continuously let

16

us know that you're short staffed, you're lacking in

17

so many ways, so aside from just looking at how to

18

update the General Plan, how are we going to update

19

your Department so that we can have somebody

20

actually deal with the specifics on a timely manner

21

and not go through any delays in process?

22

MR. FOLEY:

Madam Chair, to respond to Mr. Mateo's

23

question, a couple

24

say.

25

recruitment.

a couple things I wanted to

One, the -- we have had a serious problem with
We went through a very lengthy
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1

recruitment process for a senior planner to lead

2

this project, and we found an excellent candidate.

3

After long time holding the job open for him, we

4

hired him, and he worked for two weeks and went back

5

to his consulting firm that he had been negotiating

6

with all along.

So we had to start allover.

Then second

7

- the second series of months

8

that we did the recruitment process we found another

9

excellent candidate.

We interviewed him and

10

offered

- well, we didn't offer him the job because

11

he was disqualified by the Personnel Department

12

because he wasn't a current Hawaii resident, which

13

is required in this County but no other Hawaii

14

County.
So we're recruiting again for the third time,

15

16

and in the meantime we've reassigned several people

17

to -- from Current Planning to Long Range, and we

18

have changed the work program that several people

19

are working on so that they can spend more time on

20

the General Plan.

21

that we've done is we've -- we've just shifted some

22

of the tasks of the consultant.

23

his later tasks to the beginning and we've moved

24

some of our tasks to him and some of his tasks to

25

us.

And we have -- the other thing

We've moved some of

We've moved things around in order to try to
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keep on schedule.
And the other thing that will be coming to

3

you in another month with a request for some

4

additional help, both for consulting work and for -

5

and for staff, and we remain optimistic that we will

6

find the right person to lead this project, and in

7

the meantime the responsibility is all falling on

8

John's shoulders.

9

five, six people in Long Range that are working

We do have, you know, four or

10

part-time on this project, but it isn't the only

11

thing for them to work on.

12

So we're pedaling as fast as we can.

13

hired a lot of people, thanks to the budget

14

approvals by the Council in the last two sessions.

15

We had eight new positions approved the first year,

16

eight the second year, and we have hired most of

17

those people.

18

and we have managed to reduce the periods of time

19

for review of applications through various different

20

means, and we have a lot of excellent new staff.

21

We've

We have a few openings, but we're

The challenges that -- we've had an easy time

22

hiring entry level people and a very difficult time

23

hiring more experienced people because we're

24

competing with consultants who are extremely busy,

25

and we've lost a couple of good candidates and good
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employees to the private sector.

2

VICE-CHAIR MATEO:

Thank you.

3

CHAIR TAVARES:

4

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you.

Thank you

Madam Chair.

t

Mr. Molina.

Thank you t Madam Chair.

As a

5

follow-up to Member Mateo's question

6

been -- you're re assigning some of your planners to

7

the Long Range

8

with this particular process as well in terms of,

9

you know

10

11

t

t

t

now you've

will this have any adverse impact

processing permits and other I guess

planning activities that take place?
MR. FOLEY:

Madam Chair

t

in response to Mr. Molina's

12

question

13

hadn't been able to hire additional people.

14

fact that we've been able to hire additional staff

15

in all three divisions in zoning and in current

16

planning and in Long Range has enabled us to shift

17

at least two planners from Current Planning to Long

18

Range, but we've hired at least four in current.

19

we've reduced the amount of time that we're -- it's

20

taking to respond to subdivision applications

21

permits t Community Plan amendments t

22

zoning.

23

you know

24

keeping this project on schedule.

25

t

it would have had a negative impact if we
So the

t

SMA

changes in

We have been able to reduce it, and we
t

we continue to strive to do that while

The real challenge is that this is an
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1

extremely complicated process.

2

General Plan update in five other jurisdictions, and

3

they all pale by comparison to dealing with three

4

islands and cities that exist on this island.

5

know, in any other state of our union, those cities

6

would be incorporated and they'd all have their own

7

planning staff.

8

incorporated cities, we're doing all the detailed

9

planning and review for Kihei, Lahaina, Kahului,

And -

I've been through a

You

but in this State, without

10

Paia, et cetera.

And so that -- that places a lot

11

of additional responsibility, but we -- this is our

12

most important project.

13

is more important than anything else that the

14

Planning Department does, and that goes for all

15

planning departments.

You know, the General Plan

So, you know, we have to figure out how to

16
17

continue to balance these resources, and fortunately

18

we have really good consultants working on this job.

19

And we meet with them regularly, and, you know,

20

they've been very willing so far to come to the

21

plate and help us out where we -- where we were

22

short.

23

continue to improve the efficiency of the Department

24

in all Divisions, not just Long Range.

25

So we do keep in mind that we have to

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Madam Chair, another question.
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Will it be

2

its goals, will it be critical to network with the

3

various community associations and get their

4

participation?

5

associations that are dealing with small towns, and

6

some of them do seek funding from the Council, so

7

would their support be critical to this as well?

8
9

MR. FOLEY:

- for this particular project to achieve

For example, you have certain

Yes, absolutely.

We'll be meeting with the

community associations, and we're hoping that there

10

will be representatives appointed to the General

11

Plan Advisory Committee from the community

12

associations and from the committees that put

13

together the Community Plans, whether that was, you

14

know, two years ago on Molokai or eight years ago in

15

Lahaina.

16

if you don't have those applicants, we have public

17

meetings throughout this project.

18

them just at the end.

19

proven to be a disaster, and lots of plans, you

20

know, you can't put together the plan and then go to

21

the public.

22

beginning all the way through the process.

23

that -- that's built in.

24
25

We need that kind of continuity, but even

We don't have

As I said earlier, that's

You have to involve the public from the

Part of it is through Focus Maui Nui.

And

We've

talked to Jeanne Skog about Focus Maui Nui being
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1

expanded to use the 1,700 people that were -- that

2

were instrumental in the Focus Maui Nui report, but

3

the Focus Maui Nui had a

4

issues that weren't addressed, and so we want to go

5

back to those people and to other Focus Maui Nui

6

people to get some more input on other issues.

7

There were a lot of questions that weren't posed to

8

them.

9

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

10

CHAIR TAVARES:

11

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

- there were a lot of

Madam Chair, one last question.

Go ahead.
Mr. Foley, you brought up a real

12

interesting topic on the subject of the GPAC

13

designating certain areas for unpopular land uses,

14

and I think, you know, it's a topic worthy of

15

discussion for sure.

16

designates a certain region for a landfill, a

17

prison, et cetera, and as you know Councils do

18

change, the Council, as you mentioned earlier, will

19

have the final say.

20

disagrees with a designated area from that of where

21

the GPAC, you know, puts it on the General Plan,

22

what would take precedence?

23

the Council?

24

if --

25

MR. FOLEY:

Now, in the event the GPAC

If a particular Council

I believe would it be

Maybe Corp. Counsel can also jump in

It's ultimately a Council decision.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

At that

PC 2/28/05

57

1

point you might want to go back to the community

2

where the disagreeable land use is proposed and meet

3

with them and talk to them about the advantages and

4

disadvantages of that location and why it's the most

5

reasonable location.

6

buy off or support, but it's ultimately going to be

7

a Council decision.

8

island-wide map.

9

And you may never get their

It's going to be on that

You know, that island-wide map is going to

10

have the prison and the landfill and the place where

11

the cars are crunched and, you know, a lot of things

12

like that, you know, that are not

13

likely to be embraced by the individual communities

14

that -- that's the advantage of having an

15

island-wide map and having -- you know, having both

16

ends of the road on the same plan instead of one

17

part of it being in South Maui and one part of it

18

being Upcountry.

19

ends of the road, you know, connect in the middle.

20

And in the past the Community Plans weren't

- they're not

We want to make sure that both

21

reconciled very carefully.

I mean, they were done

22

over long periods of time.

You know, we have some

23

that are eight or ten years old and we have two that

24

are only a year old.

25

challenge.

So it's going to be a major

I mean, I don't even want to start
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1

talking about how we're going to do the nine

2

Community Plans.

3

Plans is going to be a monumental experience, and

4

then after we do that then we get to tackle the nine

5

Community Plans and we have to figure out, you know,

6

how many do we do at a time.

7

do two or three at a time, but, you know, we can't

8

do nine at the same time.

9

time, or we'll never get them done.

The General Plan, the four General

I think we'll probably

We can't do one at a

But that's for another day.

10

You know, that's

11

a -

12

about it, but we need to deal with the General Plans

13

first.

14

that's a whole different concept.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

We've talked

I guess for some the question will

15

be how much weight in terms of law does the General

16

Plan carry should that -- an issue like that arise,

17

where a Council will oppose, you know, what a GPAC

18

from years ago had designated as an area for

19

unpopular land uses.

20

Mr. Director.

21

22

So anyway, thank you,

Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR TAVARES:

Yeah, what it would entail would be a

23

General Plan amendment.

And we'd kick that in so it

24

will, through a process, if there should be a desire

25

need changes -- to change anything in the General
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1

Plan, just as it is for the Community Plans.

2

we'd go through that process, which would involve

3

the Planning Commissions and the communities and

4

things like that.
Ms. Anderson, I'm sorry, go ahead.

5

6

So

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Madam Chair.

Mr. Foley, on the handout, General Plan

7

8

Update for Maui County Policy Plan and Maui Island

9

Plan Update, it shows a research and outreach as

10

Phase I, supposed to be completed by July 5th or

11

started July 5th?

12

MR. FOLEY:

On that schedule it was supposed to be

13

completed on -- by July 5th.

14

that that's one version of the -- of the schedule,

15

but it doesn't

16

outreach.

17
18

- that doesn't complete community

It's just -

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

MR. FOLEY:

20

CHAIR TAVARES:

21

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

22

MR. SUMMERS:

24
25

Do you have a current version of

the schedule?

19

23

That's why I mentioned

part of it.
It's not July 5th.

It's July '05.

That's what I meant, July '05.

Thank you, Madam Chair.

This is a current

schedule.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And so it's going to begin July

'05 or --
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1

MR. SUMMERS:

No, no, no.

2

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

3

MR. SUMMERS:

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

completed.

That's the wrap up date.
So July of this year you will

5

have completed the research and the outreach of

6

where are we now and where are we going?

7
8

9

MR. SUMMERS:

Right, there is community outreach in that

particular phase, as well as every other phase.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So does this mean that you've

10

completed all the technical studies necessary to

11

determine what our actual --

12

MR. SUMMERS:

13

got --

By July '05, that's the target.

14

MR. FOLEY:

15

MR. SUMMERS:

16

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

17

18
19

20
21
22

Four more months.
four months.
Can you tell me what technical

studies that have been completed?
MR. SUMMERS:

Public facilities, infrastructure, we're

working on the land use forecast at this point.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So public facilities and

infrastructure has been completed?
MR. SUMMERS:

Right, however, we are updating to 2030.

23

completed it out to 2025.

24

update as we speak.

25

So we've

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

We

We're doing the 2030

For the public facilities and the
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infrastructures?
MR. SUMMERS:

There will need to be some adjustments based

on the latest pop forecast from DBEDT.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Can you tell me who did these

studies for you?
MR. SUMMERS:

The public facilities study was done by

7

R. M. Towill, Incorporated.

8

study was done by Wilson Okamoto.

9

forecast is being done by SMS Research & Consulting.

10

CHAIR TAVARES:

11

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

The infrastructure
The population

It's on your hard copy.
You know, I reviewed the public

12

facilities assessment that was done by Towill, and I

13

found that it had some

14

would affect the outcome, and I'm wondering did you

15

have them adjust or -- just one off the top of my

16

head was that they didn't use the de facto

17

population in determining park assessment needs.

18

MR. SUMMERS:

- some big errors in it that

Right, that was a major structural problem

19

that we identified as well, we also uncovered some

20

problems in the school area and we're cleaning that

21

up as well.

22

we caught.

23
24

25

But those were two of the biggies that

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Can you be more specific in how

you're cleaning it up?
MR. SUMMERS:

Well, the consultant for one reason or
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1

another had assumed that residential population,

2

which doesn't include visitors.

3

it's very important to include visitor numbers in

4

terms of analyzing park demand, particularly for

5

parks along the shoreline.

6

mistake and it's a matter of going back and using

7

the de facto numbers, which are larger population

8

numbers than resident population to count and figure

9

out park demand and future requirements.

10

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

We all know that

So we picked up on that

So they've redone it to determine

11

park assessment needs based on visitor as well as

12

resident population?

13

MR. SUMMERS:

14

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

15

MR. SUMMERS:

16

17

Right, right.
I'm glad to hear that.

And of course we need to push it out to

2030, so we're doing all that at the same time.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Okay, the other thing I wanted to

18

know is you're showing -- in the PowerPoint you gave

19

us you're showing a visitor population of 40,000 a

20

year?

21

MR. FOLEY:

A day.

22

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I mean a day.

I just saw a study

23

that came out.

24

figures.

Are we going to update that to be more

25

current?

Because I just saw a study that came out

And I believe you're using 2000
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and showed Maui County at 52,000 plus.
MR. SUMMERS:

Absolutely.

Those are 2000 figures and we

will have the latest data.

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

5

CHAIR TAVARES:

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay, thank you very much, John.

Thank you.

Mr. Kane.

Thank you, Chair.

Your two handouts,

7

one is for the Maui County Policy Plan, Maui Island

8

Plan Update, as well as the other one is the

9

Molokai, Lanai.

And, Director Foley, you talked

10

about having four general plans, one which is the

11

policy, the overriding one, and then the other

12

three.

13

we're not going to have an adopted -

14

anticipating an adopted General Plan overall for the

15

County until July of '08 based on the Molokai, Lanai

16

plan update starting -- or kicking off a year after

17

the Maui County island update.

18

question into Mr. Mateo's question about the

19

resources that are available to the Planning

20

Department.

So just to verify, based on this schedule,

21

MR. SUMMERS:

22

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

or we're not

Kind of tying the

Right, if
If you can just verify -- my question

23

is asking for verification of what I'm observing on

24

the documents that you're passing out to us.

25

MR. SUMMERS:

The -- Madam Chair, that's correct.
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1

final of the four pieces should be done by July of

2

'08.

3

in the process, but we anticipate adoption of the

4

overall Countywide Policy Plan and the Maui Island

5

Plan at the same time in July of '07.

6

Lanai would trail those island plans by a year.

7

The policy plan will be done relatively early

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Molokai and

How can you adopt a Countywide policy

8

document when you haven't completed two island

9

plans?

10

MR. SUMMERS:

We don't read -- the way we read Bill 84,

11

it's not necessary that all the components be

12

adopted at the same time.

13

read the previous chapter

14

a part of the General Plan, but the Community Plans

15

were more adopted following the General Plan.

16

got the same read, we don't think that part of the

17

bill has changed.

18

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

In other words, if you
l

the Community Plans were

Okay, so let me just clarify.

We've

The

19

General Plan update for Molokai and Lanai is

20

scheduled to be finalized around July of '08, and

21

you folks intend to finalize a -- the overall, the

22

fourth General Plan, the over -- the umbrella one

23

that encompasses the three island general plans,

24

prior to adopting the two islands plans, Lanai and

25

Molokai; is that what you're saying?
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1

MR. SUMMERS:

That's correct.

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

And so help us understand how can you

3

do that?

4

didn't get

5

understand how you can do a final umbrella General

6

Plan of the County when you haven't finished two

7

major components, which would be the other two

8

islands, Lanai and Molokai.

9

MR. FOLEY:

And if you said it, then
I didn't get it.

- help me, I

So help me

Let me take a shot at that.

10

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

11

MR. FOLEY:

Thank you.

If you look at the current General Plan, you

12

see it has basic -- some very basic principles that

13

are very likely to be repeated in the overall

14

general umbrella General Plan for all four islands,

15

and those are the kinds of statements like diversify

16

the economy, protect agriculture, save open space,

17

provide affordable housing, et cetera.

18

overall umbrella plan won't have any maps.

19

you're not going to fall into, you know, that kind

20

of an issue where something's going to happen later

21

on on Molokai or Lanai that's going to become a

22

problem with that policy plan.

23

There -- the
So

It's intended that that overall policy plan

24

have general policies that apply to all the islands,

25

and our current thinking is that we need to
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1

concentrate on that umbrella plan and the Maui

2

Island Plan, because that's where most of the

3

controversy in infrastructure inadequacies exist.

4

And our hope is that once we do those two plans, it

5

will be very easy to do Molokai and Lanai.

6

may be - - we may be incorrect in that, but we're

7

hoping that Molokai and Lanai will be easy after

8

doing Maui.

9

issues to deal with on Maui that encourage us to

10
11

And we

But we have some really significant

address them first.
And it's -- it might be necessary to adjust

12

our thinking and adopt all four at the same time,

13

but right now we're hoping that we can get the

14

general overall umbrella plan and Maui adopted first

15

and then do Molokai and Lanai.

16

have to -- I have to repeat that this is an evolving

17

process that unfortunately changes as we delve into

18

the project and we -- what will happen is we'll get

19

delayed on certain issues, like affordable housing

20

might take us a lot longer than water, and those two

21

might take us a lot longer than highways and

22

schools, but we have kind of an unfortunate

23

situation where we have to do a lot of the planning

24

for highways and schools, which aren't technically

25

our responsibility, but their integral parts of our

And, you know, I
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infrastructure and so we have to address them.
So, you know, we're -- this schedule is based

2
3

on our

our estimated time of everything going

4

smoothly, and we -- but we all know that it won't.

5

We just don't know whether it will be water that

6

takes too long or housing that takes too long or,

7

you know, a big controversy relating to the

8

relocation or expansion of the sewer treatment

9

plant.

So this is our current thinking and we don't

10

want -- that's why we didn't give you copies till

11

you asked, because we'll be giving you revised

12

copies.

13

just

14

that we are working on the General Plan, we've been

15

working on it since the day you adopted Bill 84, but

16

it's a long, complicated experience, and we're all

17

going to be seeing some revisions that are

18

inevitable.

19

But the purpose of today's meeting was
was to give you a status report to explain

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Madam Chair, thank you.

Thank you.

20

I'll speak for myself.

21

need for flexibility and the understanding of having

22

the efforts evolve as we progress forward in

23

tackling this issue.

24
25

I completely understand the

The other question I have, had to do with I
think what maybe Mr. Vicens alluded to, and maybe I
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1

can get your take, Director Foley, on if the plan

2

works -- if what we anticipate or we're projecting

3

out as adopting the final General Plan documents

4

around July of '08, what does Bill 84 -- in your

5

understanding, what determination is made regarding

6

the transition of existing Community Plans that

7

we're functioning with and a newly adopted General

8

Plan which hasn't yet written their chapters, i.e.

9

their Community Plans, revised or updated Community

10

Plans?

11

take on the transition or that interim period, if

12

you will?

13

chapters go away?

14

would happen if we haven't even written the chapters

15

for the new General Plan.

16

MR. FOLEY:

How do we deal with that -

what is your

Does these current Community Plans, these
And I don't understand how that

Well, first of all, during the General Plan

17

update process for the next two and a half years

18

we'll be using the current Community Plans that we

19

have now, and we will -- we will continue to use

20

them like we do now.

21

adopted two and a half years from now, we will have

22

to have already identified where there are

23

conflicts.

24

natural process.

25

very obvious that we're going to have situations

When the new General Plan is

And I think that's going to be a very
I think that that's going to be
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1

where the urban growth boundaries differ from the

2

boundaries in the Community Plans, for example.

3

maybe the major highway extensions and the new

4

island plan for Maui will conflict with the

5

community plans.

And

At that point it will probably be our

6

7

interpretation that wherever there's a conflict, the

8

new General plan will prevail.

9

explore that with Corp. Counsel.

We'll have to
Another

10

alternative would be at

11

is -- happens we amend the Community Plan to not be

12

in conflict.

13

but

14

know, representing new -- new -- a new decision and

15

being the plan referred to in the Charter and State

16

law, I think we would have a strong basis for saying

17

that the Community

18

supersede any conflict with the Community plan.

19

before that conflict

There are a couple of alternatives,

- but the General Plan, being newer and, you

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

- the General Plan would

Okay, and Madam Chair, it seems to me

20

another option is instead of -- and it's simply

21

another option, among many, that Bill 84's purpose

22

and intent, as we as a body determined when we

23

passed, that if that's something that wasn't

24

clarified enough, that this body as the

25

policy-making body would decide what the
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1

interpretation would be by our purposes and intent

2

in amending it to be clear on what we would like

3

happen during that interim period.
And again, it just -- you know, and Mr. Foley

4
5

correctly pointed out that obviously there's going

6

to be conflicts, and I would agree that it would

7

naturally, you know, stand to reason that we would

8

let the new General Plan prevail, but obviously we

9

have to look at the details as well in that and make

10

sure that we provide some clarity for people who are

11

functioning on the existing Community Plan that just

12

passed a year ago or two years ago, versus the one

13

that passed eight years ago as you -- you know what

14

I mean?

15

there that we have to iron out, so possibly we have

16

to talk about that at some other point.

17

So there's some -- there's some issues

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yes, we will be, because we're

18

saying that we need to clarify certain sections

19

already

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

21

CHAIR TAVARES:

Yeah.
based on a conversation that came up in

22

the Land Use Committee, or one of the committees

23

just the other week.

24

think as soon as budget is over to add some clarity

25

to what was the intent and how it's going to be

So we will be visiting that I
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1

applied with the existing General Plan and then

2

future General Plan and the existing Community

3

Plans.

4

okay, but up until then we've got a lot of questions

5

about the interim.

6

Once that series is finished, then we're

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Madam Chair, and just one final.

7

sorry.

And thank you, if I may.

8

open ended, and from Member Anderson's questions

9

regarding some of the more specific issues in the

I'm

And it will be

10

research component, I didn't hear any mention of the

11

water other than it's the more difficult task to

12

tackle, and yet you're shooting at having the

13

research and outreach completed by July 6th, which

14

is four months away, and yet I think it's going to

15

be appropriate that that water part and tying in,

16

whether we do or not, the Water Use and Development

17

Plan and integrating it, that seems like one of the

18

more specific things that need to be considered in

19

what goes out to the public for their discussion.

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

21

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

22

23

Yes.

So I don't know if that's what you

folks were intending on, Mr. Foley.
MR. FOLEY:

Well, the integration of the water -- the

24

water issue into the General plan is, you know, kind

25

of a separate agenda item today, but there are a
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1

number of infrastructure issues which are far more

2

complicated than to be completed in the next four

3

months.

4

years will definitely not be done in the next four

5

months, and nor will the Highway Plan for 25 years

6

be done in the next four months.

7

a limit to what the research element is, but there

8

will be a continuing experience with DOT and the

9

Water Department and Public Works to encourage them

The Water Development Plan for the next 25

There's

there's

10

to help us figure out, you know, where the sewer

11

treatment plants are going to go for 25 years and

12

where the water wells need to be drilled for the

13

next 25 years.

14

But some of this definitely won't be done at

15

the front end, because we have to go to them and

16

say, okay, if the population -

17

population grows 10,000 and 5,000 is here and 5,000

18

is there, where do you want the wells and the fire

19

stations?

20

the -- and it's in five different locations, in that

21

case where do you want the fire stations and the

22

wells?

23

analysis.

excuse me

- if the

But if the population grows 25,000, and

And we'll be going through those kind of

24

And we'll have a spacial growth model, which

25

is cutting edge in the country, which will show you
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1

on

2

It will show you what Makawao looks like with 5 OOO

3

more people.

4

like at Olowalu and Maalaea

5

you know

6

will be discussions about t well t

7

have to build sewer treatment plants t

8

and schools.

9

and Kihei

t

you know

t

a fly-by what all of that looks like.
t

t

and it will show you

5 t OOO versus 20 t OOO.

t

t

t

And along with that
if you do that t you
fire stations t

If you put that population in Kahului

then you've already got schools and fire

10

stations and

11

costs.

12

It will show you what new towns look

t

you know t you have less infrastructure

But those kinds of decisions are going to

13

have to be made ultimately by you

14

going to have all of the research done about

15

highways or water or schools in four months.

16

will be the completion of the background reports by

17

our consultants

18

Departments will go on for the next two and a half

19

years.

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

21

CHAIR TAVARES:

22

23
24
25

t

and we're not

t

This

but the ongoing work with the

Thank you.

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.

Ms. Anderson.

We'll be taking

a recess after this question t Members.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
questions

t

I was hoping to have a couple

but I'll try to be direct.

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Can we recess before?
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1

CHAIR TAVARES:

Would you rather we recess now?

2

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

3

CHAIR TAVARES:

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

5

CHAIR TAVARES:

Itls up to the body.

Okay.
Itls fine with me.

WeIll take a recess now, then, because I

6

had intended to take a recess at 3:00, so weIll be

7

in recess until 3:25.
3:15 p.m.

8

RECESS:

9

RECONVENE:

10

11

(Gavel) .

3: 33 p.m.

(Gavel).

CHAIR TAVARES:

Planning Committee please

reconvene.
Thank you, Members, and thank you,

12

13

Ms. Anderson, for volunteering to wait until after

14

the break.

15

questions.

16

Why don't you go ahead with your

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Madam Chair.

11m

17

curious what State agencies are assisting the

18

Planning Department in formulating the technical

19

studies.

20

MR. SUMMERS:

Thank you, Madam Chair, Members of the

21

Committee.

22

Department of Business, Economic Development, and

23

Tourism, the State Department of Transportation, and

24

the Department of Education.

25

The primary State agencies would be the

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I know in the past that the
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1

State

2

plans that were the basis of General and Community

3

Plan forecasts.

4

Is that why we're going out and having private

5

consultants do these studies?

6

MR. SUMMERS:

various State agencies developed functional

Are they not doing that any more?

You're right that the State has done

7

functional plans in the past.

These studies are

8

much more capacity related, the studies that we're

9

doing, whereas the functional plans were much more

10

future orientated.

11

process at the State level for a number of reasons,

12

primarily fiscal, have atrophied.

13

kept up with that process at this point.

14
15

16

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

But the functional planning

They have not

The State leg is not funding it

or is this a Department decision or
MR. SUMMERS:

I think it's more of an executive decision.

17

It's a resource allocation within the Office of

18

State Planning.

19

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So that means the County has to

20

bear the cost now of getting these technical studies

21

done?

22

MR. SUMMERS:

Well, it certainly requires the County to be

23

more proactive in working with the individual State

24

agencies.

25

And we're going to have to nudge --

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

My question was does that mean
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1

the County now has to bear the cost of getting these

2

technical studies done?

3

MR. SUMMERS:

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

5

6

No, no.
So who's paying for the

consultants?
MR. SUMMERS:

We're still doing those -- our own studies

7

regardless because the purposes are somewhat

8

different, but it does require more research on our

9

part.

10

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So we're paying to have the

11

technical studies done, which will be the foundation

12

for the Community and General Plan updates?

13

MR. SUMMERS:

14

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

15

That's correct.
And do you have any idea what the

additional cost is over the past?

16

MR. SUMMERS:

No, I don't.

17

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

You said that there needs to be

18

an update on the population forecasts based on what

19

information you recently got from DBEDT.

20

tell me what the population forecasts are based on?

21

MR. SUMMERS:

Can you

The State Department of Business, Economic

22

Development, and Tourism historically looks at

23

forecasts, looking at several different issues, but

24

the primary -- primary one historically has been the

25

rate of growth in the visitor industry, as well as
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1

rates of net in migration and out migration; in

2

other words, the ability of the local labor force to

3

meet job growth demands.

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So population forecast -- in

5

other words, population

6

forecasts are based on historic growth rates?

7

MR. SUMMERS:

- future population

That's correct, to a large extent.

The

8

importance of the latest forecast from the State is

9

that it's a major, major restructuring of their

10

methodology, and that's one of the reasons why we

11

feel it's important to go to 2030, in addition to

12

the other agencies are using the 2030 forecast.

13

It's a completely revised methodology, and we think

14

a much better methodology.

15

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Well, what I'm trying to get at

16

is if we are going to base our future population on

17

the rate of our current growth both in the visitor

18

industry and in our County population, then -- and

19

then everything within the General Plan and the

20

Community Plan is based on meeting that future

21

population forecast, then there seems to be no

22

there seems to be no control over what our carrying

23

capacity is.

24

supposed to be basing that on our desired population

25

growth, not just on, you know, whatever it

And in our General Plan, we are
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1

extrapolates out to based on our current, you know,

2

runaway growth.

3

MR. FOLEY:

Madam Chair, if I could comment, that's why we

4

have alternative growth scenarios in the plan.

5

We'll have one

6

repeating history; in other words, the same growth

7

rate that we've experienced over the last ten or 20

8

years, but then there will also be alternatives.

9

There could be an alternative, for instance, that

- one of them will be based on just

10

showed half as much growth, if that's what the

11

desired by the community and the Council, and there

12

could be another alternative of even more than the

13

historic growth.

14

be alternatives, and the historic pattern will be

15

only one of them, and the Council will choose what

16

those alternatives are.

17

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

- is

But the alternatives -- there will

Okay, that's what I wanted to

18

hear.

19

assessment that you did for the County -- or Wilson

20

Okamoto did, did they take into consideration

21

regional roadways, capacity of regional roadways?

22
23

MR. SUMMERS:

The other question was the infrastructure

That particular study was actually done by

KAKU & Associates.

24

MR. FOLEY:

25

MR. SUMMERS:

That's a separate one.
That's a separate document.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And did they take in

consideration regional roadways?

3

MR. SUMMERS:

They did.

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

They did, most definitely.
KAKU, okay.

Madam Chair, I would

5

request that, you know, because these technical

6

studies are really the basis of the General

7

developing the General and Community Plans, those -

8

those forecasts are really critical in how the

9

General Plan is developed, and I would hope that the

10

Council would get a chance to look at these updated

11

technical studies before the plan gets too far along

12

in the future, because it is the Council's authority

13

who finally adopts this.

14

we would get a chance to look at these studies and

15

question if there's any, you know, fallacies or

16

flaws in them so that when the Planning Department

17

goes forward, they know they're going forward with

18

confidence of the Council.

19

And so I would hope that

The other thing I wanted to mention was that

20

in 2.80B, our current General Community plan

21

ordinance, it did adopt our current General Plan and

22

our current Community Plans as part of that

23

ordinance.

24

full force and effect of law until they are revised

25

or new ones are adopted.

And it does say that they will have the
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CHAIR TAVARES:

Yeah, that -- we're going to talk about

2

Bill 84 in another meeting, because we need to have

3

a whole lot of clarification for Bill 84, because

4

there's already so much interpretation and

5

misinterpretation of what was intended.

6

be taking that up in June and July.

7

issue for that and we will be talking about

8

amendments to make it crystal clear what the

9

intention of the Council was either at the time that

So I will

I'll create an

10

we passed Bill 84 or maybe we have new intentions

11

now, but we already knew back then that we would be

12

revising 2.80B because of certain things that might

13

come up, and the transition is always the hardest

14

part, and I think that's what we're embroiled with

15

right now, so we will be visiting that in the

16

summertime.

17

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Madam Chairman.

And

18

just one other thing.

19

carrying capacity reports, and I'm not sure if

20

that's just another terminology for the

21

infrastructure report and the public facilities.

22

Those are different reports.

23

at those reports if possible, Madam Chair.

24
25

CHAIR TAVARES:

The Department referenced

I'd also like to look

Okay, I'll send a letter requesting those

reports as they become available --
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1

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

2

CHAIR TAVARES:

3

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

4

MR. FOLEY:

5

CHAIR TAVARES:

6

MR. FOLEY:

Thank you very much.

from the Department.
That's all I have.

Madam Chair, if I could just respond.

We -

Mr. Foley.
our intention is to put the carrying

7

capacity reports and the technical studies on the

8

website so that people can review them very easily.

9

The carrying capacity studies aren't all complete.

10

We did -- we did South Maui I think first and West

11

Maui second and I think we did Paia-Haiku third, and

12

I'm not sure we've gone beyond that.

13

these studies will be on our website.

14

the project maps, like this Central Maui map, will

15

be on the website also, and our intention is to

16

update that -- those maps monthly.

17

have one of our -- we have a planners meeting every

18

Friday and they're going to -

19

they're going to check the map and make sure every

20

planner's 40 or 50 projects are on the three or four

21

maps.

22

CHAIR TAVARES:

23

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

But all of
And the maps,

We're going to

one of those meetings

Michelle.
Yeah, on this large chart it says

24

conceptual framework to develop directed growth

25

strategy, Maui Island Plan.

Are we going to get a
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copy of that?
MR. SUMMERS:

That's our intent.

It's not -- obviously as

3

products become available, we'll be putting them up

4

on the web.

5

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Right, I see it's conceptual, but

6

directed growth strategy, that's not the same thing

7

as managed growth?

8

you're going to use to develop urban growth areas?

9

MR. FOLEY:

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

11

MR. SUMMERS:

13
14

So this is a strategy

Yeah.

10

12

It is?

Okay, I'd love to have a copy.

Right, we'll send that up in eight and a

half by eleven this afternoon.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you.

Thank you very much,

Madam Chairman.

15

CHAIR TAVARES:

Thank you.

16

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Mr. Pontanilla.
Thank you, Madam Chair.

17

Question on the various modules or analysis that's

18

going to be done for the different areas in regards

19

to our strategy growth.

20

infrastructure on the various studies that we do,

21

are you going to have like a dollar amount figure in

22

regards to wastewater, roadways, County roadways,

23

State highway roadways?

24
25

MR. FOLEY:

As far as the

Madam Chair, in response to Mr. Pontanilla's

question, we will have some general numbers on a lot
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1

of those in the CIP program.

2

examples that you gave will be able to have numbers

3

on, you know, a new fire station or sewer treatment

4

plant.

5

the ones that come from the State like the school

6

cost and the highway cost, and it will be a

7

challenge to keep the numbers up to date because

8

they change pretty rapidly, but we will -- we will

9

attempt to have numbers whenever possible, yeah.

10

The -- a lot of the

The ones that will be more difficult will be

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Yeah, I think one of the

11

biggest challenge for us as we go through our budget

12

review is trying to accommodate as much as possible

13

on CIPs, and, you know, every department has a

14

priority, and hopefully all departments that are

15

looking at the General Plan work in one unison team;

16

in other words, one goal and you focus in trying to

17

complete that goal.

18

Thank you for that info.

19
20
21

CHAIR TAVARES:

So, Madam Chair, thank you.

Any other questions for the Department?

Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Madam Chair, actually it's just a

22

follow-up on two previous items, and I was going to

23

ask first if -- realizing that this

24

two-and-a-half-year plan will evolve, if it wouldn't

25

be too much to ask to provide us -- and you can
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1

state the flexibility needed in the memo, but if you

2

can respond, and, Chair, if you can under your

3

signature just provide us with an understanding of

4

how you're going to do two of the four, including

5

the general one, before you finish up the Maui --

6

the Molokai and Lanai one.

7

I think some of us are just having a problem

8

with grasping how you're going to be able to

9

accomplish that without compromising the Molokai and

10

Lanai plans and allowing them a full and open

11

discussion in completing themselves when they

12

already have something over here that's done that's

13

kind of dictating to them how they got to be.

14

you can help us with that, I'd appreciate it.

15

CHAIR TAVARES:

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

17

CHAIR TAVARES:

18

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

So if

Okay.
Thank you.

Thank you.
Thank you, Madam Chair.

The other

19

thing is I know you talked about, Mr. Foley -- and

20

this may just be a note and a friendly reminder.

21

If -- you noted that you had eight expansions for

22

'04 and 'OS, I think, respectively, ballpark, and I

23

know that we did

24

that and you're close to that, unless we're not able

25

to log one.

- I just did some verification of

We had a supplemental budget amendment
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1

I know back in '04 for three,

'05 you had eight, and

2

then the '04 regular you had four that we know of,

3

but they were assignments to various programs within

4

your Planning Department.
So the reason I bring this up is because you

5

6

noted that you're going to be pulling resources

7

or a lot of them are going to be going into the

8

General Plan because that's your primary focus for

9

the Department.

So I'm just wondering if you have

10

in fact moved people within programs, that if you

11

can please make sure that we're notified of those

12

changes so that we can, again, measure it against

13

what requests may come forward in the upcoming

14

budget.

15

MR. FOLEY:

Yeah, several people were moved -

two people

16

I guess were moved, a couple several months ago, but

17

those were positions that you funded.

18

that the people that were hired happened to already

19

be employees, but, you know, we haven't -- we

20

haven't done anything in conflict with the budget

21

you approved, and we do have a request for -

22

think one of our requests for next year is to work

23

specifically only on the General plan.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay.

It's just

I

And I just wanted to know if

there's any movement between programs, if you can
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1

make sure that we're notified of that.

2

note that you did have Long Range Division Planner,

3

you know, so you've hired specific -- for specific

4

reasons, Coastal Zone Management, the grant program,

5

et cetera, so --

6

MR. FOLEY:

And again, I

Yeah, it's kind of complicated because we also

7

had two employees retire and we had other employees

8

that left for other jobs, and we've

9

positions we've filled and some of them we haven't.

10

11

So we've got three or four openings now.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

12
13

- some of those

Thank you, Mr. Foley.

Chair, thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES:

Thank you.

Mr. Foley or Mr. Summers,

14

could you tell me to what extent is water included

15

in the infrastructure studies or the public facility

16

studies?

17

existing what our stuff is, what's available on the

18

island?

19

MR. SUMMERS:

Do you know?

Is it just looking at

Thank you, Madam Chair.

Water's very

20

involved.

21

last several months.

22

of the existing systems and some of the major

23

merging issues that will affect land use policy and

24

other policy in the County.

25

CHAIR TAVARES:

We've been meeting with them over the
We're looking at both capacity

Okay, thank you.

Members, any further

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

PC 2/28/05

1

87

questions for the Department?

2

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

3

CHAIR TAVARES:

4

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Yeah

t

I got one.

Mr. Pontanilla.
Thank you.

When we do the

5

General Plan review t the Advisory Committee t

6

understand that the Director will be appointing part

7

of his staff to support the group.

8

as far as what kind of support the staff will

9

provide the Committee in regards to the General Plan

10

11

I

Can you tell me

update?
MR. FOLEY:

Madam Chair

the -- the meetings of course

t

12

will vary depending on the subject and where they

13

are in the process

14

will be a Planning Department representative there.

15

Some of the meetings there will probably be several t

16

and some of the meetings there will be consultants

17

there as well.

18

you know

19

it's kind of hard to answer your question because

20

it's going to depend on where we are in the process

21

and what's being discussed.

22

t

t

but at all of the meetings there

And we'll provide maps and handouts

for -- for the Advisory Committee, but

But we will certainly staff every meeting to

23

some level.

One or more people will be there to

24

answer questions and t you know t write down what's

25

needed for the next meeting.

And we don't really
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I mean,

1

have an extremely firm number of meetings.

2

we have a certain number of meetings in the

3

consultant's budget, but we're -- that's the kind of

4

thing that can change if we discover that the

5

questions that corne up are easier for us to answer,

6

it will be less expensive than paying them to go to

7

the meetings.

8

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

9

10
11

So is there a possibility like

an ad hoc committee to ensure that what the public
wants is provided in the General Plan?
MR. FOLEY:

Well, the 25 members are supposed to represent

12

the seven Community Plan areas of Maui island.

13

Those 25 people are just for Maui island, and

14

that -- that size of a committee is extremely

15

difficult to administer.

16

manage.

17

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

18

MR. FOLEY:

I won't use the word

Facilitate.

Facilitate.

Thank you.

The consultant has

19

facilitators that will be working with the Committee

20

and they will help to keep the agendas straight and

21

keep the Committee on appropriate topics, but we -

22

we wouldn't -- we wouldn't want to have Committees

23

appointed in addition to the one in Bill 84 with 25

24

members.

25

herding cats.

25-member committee is kind of like
You know, it's going to be people
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1

from every imaginable organization and with a very

2

wide level of knowledge about the issues that are

3

being discussed.

4

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you, Madam Chair.

5

6

CHAIR TAVARES:

Anything else, Members?

7

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Kane.

One final question, Chair, with

8

respects to the community outreach meetings and

9

also -- well, more the GPAC meetings as they get

10

under way.

I'll describe real briefly two trains of

11

thought.

12

believes that professionals should be kind of

13

telling us how we plan, and then the other train of

14

thought, maybe the other end, is that the public

15

engagement and the public kind of drives the people.

One is that a segment of the community

16

Can you help us understand what your

17

philosophy as our Planning Director is in providing

18

or helping to facilitate these meetings and what

19

approach are you going to be nurturing in these

20

meetings?

21

professional driving or is it going to be the more

22

public engagement and tapping their knowledge and

23

figuring out if they have stuff that's relevant to

24

the parameters that are set up in this General Plan

25

update?

Is it going to be the professional -- the
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MR. FOLEY:

Madam Chair, this is a tough one.
Thanks, Dain.

2

3

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

4

MR. FOLEY:

You're welcome.

It's really a combination of both.

My

5

understanding -- and maybe others who are more

6

experienced with Bill 84 can clarify this, but my

7

understanding is that there was pretty wide

8

recognition that the last time the General Plan was

9

updated and when some of the community plans were

10

updated, there wasn't any -- any -- there was

11

inadequate resources provided by the -

12

County staff at the meetings and there wasn't any

13

guidance or even anyone to answer questions, and so

14

there was a lot of time spent on ideas that didn't

15

have much chance of success.

16

by the

And so my understanding is that when Bill 84

17

was drafted it was purposely drafted with the

18

provision for the Planning Department to present

19

drafts for review by the Advisory Committee and for

20

consideration by the consultants, and so that we

21

would have a more active role in presenting

22

alternatives for the Advisory Committee to consider,

23

rather than just having a blank slate for them to

24

to address without any constraints or without any

25

without any guidelines or facts.
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So I guess it's a -- my vision is that it's a

1

2

combination of the two, and, you know, I can tell

3

you from my experience I've used both methods, and

4

one of them takes twice as long as the other.

5

you don't have the resources available at the

6

meetings and you can't answer people's questions,

7

you spend a lot of time spinning your wheels and you

8

spend a lot of time addressing ideas that, you know,

9

don't really have much basis in the reality.

10

If

So I think it's not a case of us leading the

11

process so much as being there as resources to

12

explain to people how much commercial acreage is

13

needed and, you know, what the experience has been

14

in the past to the absorption rate of industrial

15

land in Central Maui, you know, that kind of thing,

16

so that people realize that you can't just plan for

17

a couple of acres.

18

to find a place for a hundred acres, not two.

19

If a hundred are needed, we have

So it -- we'll be -- we intend to be there as

20

resources, but we do intend to present alternatives

21

for people to consider, you know, and I mentioned

22

earlier this spacial growth model.

23

is what

24

5,000 more people.

25

with 15,000 more people.

You know, this

this is what Makawao looks like with
This is what Makawao looks like
This is what Kahului looks
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1

like if you doubled the density with in-fill.

2

is what it looks like if you just add to the

3

periphery and don't change the density.

4

This

We'll have those tools which didn't exist,

5

you know, when the 1990 General Plan was done.

6

We'll have those tools on the GIS system.

7

spacial growth model is a national resource that,

8

you know, is -

9

particular type of technology, and it will be very

10

exciting to be able to show people, you know, what

11

these alternatives look like and be able to very

12

quickly, you know, change the numbers and change the

13

screen to reflect different alternatives.

14

And the

we're on the cutting edge in that

Hopefully it will make for more knowledgeable

15

decisions, but, you know, after the GPAC makes

16

recommendations, then the Planning Commission will

17

make recommendations, and then the Council will

18

actually make the decision.

19

possibility that on some issues you'll get varying

20

recommendations from the staff, from the GPAC, from

21

the Planning Commission.

22

different recommendations from us and have to make

23

the -- make the choice.

24

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

25

CHAIR TAVARES:

So, you know, there's a

You could get three

Thank you.

Okay, thank you.

Any other questions,
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1

Members?

If not, Members, with no objection, I'll

2

defer this item so that we can get future reports,

3

or reports in the future.

4

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

5

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS (excused:

6

ACTION:

No objections.
RC, RH).

DEFER pending further discussion.

7

8

ITEM NO. 25:

WATER ISSUES AND THE GENERAL PLAN
(C.C. No. 04-247)

9

10

CHAIR TAVARES:

Thank you.

All right, Members, the next

11

item on our agenda is -

12

On PC-25 I've had a request to defer the item, and I

13

have no problem with that deferral.

14

part of the ramifications of the request has to do

15

with incorporating the Water Use and Development

16

Plans into Bill 84, and I had mentioned earlier that

17

Bill 84, we will be I think having lots of

18

discussion about some other areas in Bill 84 and we

19

can also take it up at this time.

20

I lost my agenda

- PC-25.

I think that

But Mr. Kane was the initiator of the action

21

for this agenda item, and I had agreed to put this

22

on the agenda so that we could have some discussion

23

at this time, but I've received word the Water

24

Department is requesting that we defer the item

25

until a later date so they can prepare their -
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their response.
Mr. Kane/ would you -- you have some

2
3

4

comments?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I'll try to be brief/ Madam Chair.

5

I'll support your deferral request reluctantly.

I

6

felt that this was something that was important to

7

put on the table to have a discussion in light of

8

the General Plan process that we've been talking

9

about today.

There hasn't been much mention of

10

specifically water infrastructural long-term

11

planning components within the discussion/ and I

12

felt it was appropriate for us to have a discussion.

13

So we put -- our office put an ordinance or a

14

proposal on the table for discussion/ and by no

15

means do I believe as the writer of it that this is

16

the answer to all things/ but I felt it was

17

appropriate for us to have a substantive discussion

18

on it.

19

And in light of the Water Department's

20

request/ because they weren't ready or adequately

21

prepared to respond and I do want them to be

22

adequately prepared to respond to the discussion/ I

23

think -- I think it will probably be the more

24

appropriate thing to have it heard when we have more

25

time to look into it.
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One final note

t

Chair

- and I'm looking

2

forward to this being incorporated into your

3

consideration in your June -

4

meetings t Chair

5

I'll talk to you before that.

6

wanted to make before I yield the mike t Chair t is

7

that t you know t obviously a lot of the problems that

8

we're having is -- with updating the Water Use and

9

Development plan has to do with the State Water

t

your

or early July

so I'll look forward to that and
The other point I

10

Commission as wellt and the shortcomings of that

11

particular body and how difficult it's been for the

12

County to be able to work proactively and -- you

13

know t for the best interest of water use and water

14

planning.

15

Probably one of the more specific issues that

16

are kind of a concern and that will be worth waiting

17

to see and may have some level of impact in our

18

discussions in June or July is that there are some

19

more vacancies that are going to be coming up on the

20

Commission.

21

the February report of a report in February that the

22

Governor has still not put together a nomination

23

committee to recommend candidates for those

24

vacancies t and if the legislature ends by their time

25

in late Aprilt early MaYt then the Governor will

It's at this pointt at the latest t in
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1

have that interim authority to appoint for the

2

interim period, and right now there's not much

3

confidence, because the Governor has sent some

4

signals that doesn't show a very broad support for

5

the Water Commission's existence.

6

So, you know, there's issues that are

7

compounding this every day, and I just felt that

8

this discussion would have been appropriate for now

9

because we're moving down this road of water -- you

10

know, the General Plan, incorporating water use in

11

long-term planning, getting these things somehow

12

integrated.

13

And waiting till June or July is unfortunate, but, you

14

know, there may be things that happen between now

15

and then that will help us even define further what

16

we need to do to have that discussion incorporate or

17

implement something.

18

in monitoring various situations that tie into this,

19

and hopefully we'll be able to move forward and get

20

something accomplished.

21

time you've provided me.

If it's not this way, it's some way.

22

CHAIR TAVARES:

23

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

24

Madam Chairwoman.

25

Thank you.

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

So I'll be, Chair, very active

So, Chair I appreciate the
I yield.

Ms. Anderson.

Thank you, Madam Chairman --

Chair is fine.
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1

CHAIR TAVARES:

Chair is fine.

2

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I just wanted to let the

3

Committee know that the Water Use and Development

4

Plan will be taken up in the Water Resources

5

Committee on Wednesday morning, so

6

allow quite a bit of latitude, so if there's issues

7

that Mr. Kane wants to address at that time, he can

8

do so.

9
10

CHAIR TAVARES:

Okay, thank you.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

- and I will

Ms. Johnson.

Were there any individuals in the

11

audience signed up to testify on this particular

12

matter?

13

CHAIR TAVARES:

Yes, and I was going to get to that.

14

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

15

CHAIR TAVARES:

All right.

Thank you.

Mr. Mayer, you're the only one signed up.

16

Do you want to testify now or do you want to wait

17

until it's rescheduled?

18

MR. MAYER:

19

CHAIR TAVARES:

20
21

I'd like to take the time right now.
Okay, sure.

Go right ahead .

. BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY.

MR. MAYER:

My name is Dick Mayer.

I very much appreciate

22

Mr. Kane's introducing this measure and trying to

23

integrate better the Water Use and Development Plan

24

and the General Plan, and I'm pleased that

25

Councilmember Anderson's going to take it up this
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1

WednesdaYt and I wasn't aware of that.

2

there is a time factor.

3

Water Use and Development Plan and the General Plan

4

in many ways cover a lot of the same issues t and

5

we'll go with the

I think

Because these plans -- the

the two interact very greatly.

By waiting till June or July I think we may

6
7

lose three months t and at least getting the Water

8

Use and Development Plan to the stage where it can

9

be given to the General Plan groupt that I

10

understand now will be meeting probably in a few

11

months t later this year t and so I would urge the

12

Water Department to get their plan ready to the

13

point where it can be looked at by the General Plan

14

Committee.
And this bill would have gotten that process

15
16

I think accelerated.

17

Council to get the Water Department to get their

18

draft ready or whatever to the General plan

19

Committee t I think -- Committees t I think would be

20

in order.

21

integrated together.

22

introducing the measure.

23

CHAIR TAVARES:

24

MR. MAYER:

25

CHAIR TAVARES:

Anything that you can do as a

So I think it's very important the two be
I appreciate Mr. Kane's

Yes t and I do also.

Thank you.

Thank you.
Mr. Kane.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Yeah, one brief question.

Mr. Mayer, are you aware that the Water Use

2
3

and Development Plan, once it's drafted, that it

4

needs to be passed on to the Board of Water Supply

5

for comment, and then once it gets there that's when

6

it moves forward from there?

7

process is very important in that we recognize all

8

the parts of the process to engage all the people

9

that we've put our confidence in to have the

10

discussions and put forward recommendations.

11

MR. MAYER:

Yes, I recognize that.

So, I mean, that

There is one problem,

12

though, and that is the present Water Board does not

13

have rules that are proper, and that any

14

recommendations they're making now and into the near

15

future, until they really have rules, may end up

16

getting questioned legally.

17

Council to look into that whole matter as a process,

18

because there may be some real fundamental problems

19

because they are interacting with laws of the County

20

down the road, so -- and I'm not an attorney, but it

21

just came to my attention that the Water Board's

22

rules really have not been adopted since the Charter

23

change has taken place.

24

CHAIR TAVARES:

25

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

So I would urge the

Mr. Kane.
Yeah, and just a final note.
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1

know how far the law would reach into a board's

2

ability to provide comment and a recommendation,

3

although I agree that if it gets into actual, you

4

know, components of authority, obviously those are

5

issues there, but in this case I think the role of

6

the board wouldn't be to have some sort of authority

7

other than to recommend and provide comment, so --

8

but that's just as important for us as a body when

9

we move forward with the discussion of water use and

10

development.

11

MR. MAYER:

Thank you all for your time.

12

CHAIR TAVARES:

13

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Michelle.
Mr. Mayer, just so you know, the

14

Water Resource Committee is taking up the rules

15

issue, and, you know, the rules are not just for the

16

Board.

17

be addressing that shortly.

They're for the Department.

18

MR. MAYER:

Right.

19

CHAIR TAVARES:

Very good.

Okay, thank you.

20

Thank you, Ms. Anderson.

21

Thank you, Mr. Mayer.

22

MR. MAYER:

Thank you, all .
.

23

24
25

And so we will

CHAIR TAVARES:

. . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . . .

All right, Members, no objection, we'll

defer this item.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS:

2

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS (excused:

3

4

ACTION:

No objections.

DEFER pending further discussion.

CHAIR TAVARES:

Okay, the item is deferred.

Any announcements, Members?

5

RC, RH).

Thank you very

6

much.

I thank you, Department of Planning, for the

7

presentation.

8

we all anticipated, but because it was the first one

9

I think there were a lot of questions that we needed

I know it took a little longer than

10

to get out and aired.

11

kept in the loop as you're going through the

12

process, and hopefully that will make for a nice,

13

smooth accomplishment of a General Plan in some

14

years.
Thank you very much, everybody.

15
16
17

I think we would like to be

is adjourned.
ADJOURN:

(Gavel) .

4:11 p.m.
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